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Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately RMB668.4 million, representing an increase of 26.0%
from approximately RMB530.4 million recorded in 2013.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately RMB386.5 million, representing an increase of 23.5%
from approximately RMB313.1 million recorded in 2013.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB211.6
million, representing an increase of 21.5% from approximately
RMB174.2 million recorded in 2013.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB10.0 cents per ordinary share for 2014.
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FINANCIAL S

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2014
—E-mEF

RMB’000

ARBTR

REVENUE WA 668,426
Cost of sales $HE AR (281,928)
Gross profit EF 386,498
Other income and gains E AW A R 5,877
Selling and distribution expenses 46 K 48 44 5 = (40,338)
Administrative expenses TR X (81,444)
Other expenses H A (1,512)
Finance costs & P AN (22,858)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A0 R E 246,223
Income tax expense Fri8 i 5 2 (34,620)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRAE 211,603

Attributable to: TE AT A
ordinary equity holders of KRB EBEER

the Company wAa A 211,603

S)

W #5822 (5 5F)

LFEHBHRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010
—F—= —FT—-—F —T——F ZZET—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT AREFTT AR®ETT
530,433 337,125 109,492 36,297
(217,364) (144,226) (63,250) (22,910)
313,069 192,899 46,242 13,387
11,519 5,051 10,514 2,034
(25,679) (24,104) (16,289) (1,339)
(74,094) (22,899) (988) (970)
(17) (35) (59) (1,094)
(17,646) (15,463) (11,752) (3,597)
207,152 135,449 27,674 8,421
(32,945) (37,011) (7,460) 2,139)
174,207 98,438 20,214 6,282
174,207 98,438 20,214 6,282
EENBEERLEA —ZT—NFEFR
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY

2014
—E-mEFE
RMB’000
AR®TT

TOTAL ASSETS EE#E 1,936,466
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAR (682,062)

TOTAL EQUITY ST 1,254,404
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As at 31 December

EE BEREZAHE

W+=A=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-=F —ET——F —E——F —E—ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEREEF T AR T T ARBET T ANEREEF T
728,669 478,197 294,563 126,179
(432,343) (345,087) (258,891) (110,721)
296,326 133,110 35,672 15,458




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It is a great honour for me, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Honworld Group Limited (the “Company” or “Lao Heng He”), to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

RESULTS HIGHLIGHT

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB211.6 million,
representing an increase of 21.5% from approximately RMB174.2 million
recorded in 2013.

Basic earnings per share of the Company (the “Share” or “Shares”)
decreased from RMB46.5 cents per Share for 2013 to RMB41.8 cents per
Share for 2014. Decrease in earnings per share was attributable to the new
Shares of the Company issued upon the initial public offering (the “IPO”) on
28 January 2014 (the “Listing Date”) and the new Shares issued upon
exercise of the over-allotment option on 13 February 2014 that resulted in an
enlarged share capital.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB10.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2014, subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the 2015 annual general meeting (the “AGM”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading manufacturers of cooking wine in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The Group offers high-
quality and healthy cooking wine as well as other condiments, including soy
sauce and vinegar.

According to fmcgchina.com ()8 s E #5/) issued in January 2015, Lao
Heng He is ranked number one in the offline cooking wine sales in China
market in 2014 by sales value.

In 2014, the Group recorded strong growth in various grades of cooking wine
and vinegar as compared to the previous year. The strong growth is a good
testimony to the effective distribution and pricing strategies implemented by
the Group in 2014.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

TR S (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue reached
approximately RMB668.4 million (2013: RMB530.4 million), representing an
increase of approximately 26.0% over the previous year. Profit before tax was
approximately RMB246.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB207.2 million), representing an increase of approximately 18.9% over
2013. Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB211.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB174.2 million), representing an increase of approximately 21.5% over
2013.

The Group’s key product, cooking wine, continues to be our major source of
revenue, representing approximately 70.8% of the total revenue. The
encouraging result is attributable to various key drivers of the PRC cooking
wine market, including: 1) growing urban population and rising purchasing
power; 2) increasing health and food safety awareness; 3) gradual
convergence of consumer taste and demand; and 4) the rapid growth in
demand for better-quality cooking wine over the past few years.

The Group has continued to increase its investments in production and use
naturally-brewed yellow rice wine as a base to manufacture various grades of
cooking wine. Notably, there is a significant upside on consumer demands for
naturally-brewed and better-quality cooking wine.

The Group has gained wider recognition among consumers for its quality
products. With the continuing expansion of the products’ sales channels and
the increasing resources allocated to the Group’s development, the Group
has not only attained the status of Hi-tech Enterprise, but also maneuvered
itself into a favorable position to promote the traditional recipes during the
process of industrialized production and supply healthy and quality
condiments to consumers. Therefore, the Group is optimistic about the long
term outlook for cooking wine demand going forward, particularly for the
premium and high-end cooking wine products.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

However, the Group does face certain risks in its production and business
development, which include: 1) risk of significant increase in the cost of
production, such as increase in the prices of agricultural sideline products,
packaging cost or labour cost; 2) negative impact on our sales due to the
changing consumer habits for Chinese food; 3) the greater-than-expected
cost pressure from market expansion; 4) Category A and B distributors’ (as
defined in the prospectus issued by the Company on 16 January 2014
(“Prospectus”)) operational risks may negatively impact on our sales
channels, due to our increasing sales to Category A and B distributors; and 5)
the possibility of failure of our new products to obtain market recognition.

We see a trend of increasing number of Chinese consumers choosing quality
products with greater brand recognition. Chinese consumers are attaching a
greater importance to quality and food safety, and are more willing to pay
higher price for premium quality products.

The Group’s profitability is mainly affected by the product price and its cost of
sales, the product structure and mix, and the relevant domestic policies.
However, benefited from internal factors such as the Group’s timely
stockpiling of base wine, growing brand influence, and its attainment of Hi-
tech Enterprise status, as well as external factors such as rising purchasing
power of consumers, the growing popularity of healthy products and the
increasing market capacity, we have offset most of the impact from these risk
factors and continued to achieve strong growth in both revenue and profit.

In order to widen our potential shareholder base over the long term, on 2
September 2014, the Company successfully issued 100,000,000 warrants to
an independent investor at the issue price of HK$0.10 per warrant whereas
the subscription price is HK$8.00 per subscription Share upon the exercise of
the relevant warrants. As at the date of this annual report, no warrants have
been exercised.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

TR S (&)

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2014, we saw the continuous slowdown of China’s macroeconomic
growth, with China’s GDP growth at 7.4% in 2014. We believe the “economic
new normal” as advocated by China’s president will become the consensus
of the government and the private sectors for the next few years.

Looking ahead, despite the uncertainty in the global and domestic economic
conditions, China’s GDP is expected to grow at a relatively steady pace.
Riding on China’s steady economic growth, sustained growth in China’s
disposable income, an increase in consumer spending in the PRC and the
increasing health and food safety awareness which gave rise to more
discerning consumers, the Company believes our products under the “Lao
Heng He” brand will achieve rapid growth in the PRC.

Leveraging the Group’s well known heritage condiment brand “Lao Heng He”
which dates back to 140 years ago, extensive distribution network and strong
relationship with key distributors, the Group is determined to capture the
opportunities brought by these healthy market trends.

We have expanded our production and storage facility at our plants in Huzhou
City, Zhejiang Province in 2014. We have added new cooking wine
production workshops, purchased new production equipment, and
implemented various technical improvements to the production lines. At the
same time, we have added three new warehouses to hold our base wine.

As at 31 December 2014, our stock of base wine increased to approximately
158.4 million liters and we plan to increase the Group’s stock of base wine to
approximately 225.0 million liters by the time when the fermentation season
of 2015 ends. The Group will also continue to improve its research and
development capabilities to focus on standardization of production process,
new product development and product improvement.

Furthermore, we will look for suitable merger and acquisition opportunities to
enhance our production capacity and product portfolio, which will bring long-
term strategic and economic value to the Group. We are determined to
maintain ourselves as one of the leading condiment producers in China.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GOALS AND STRATEGIES

In 2015, we will focus on the strategy of providing natural premium healthy
condiments to our consumers and adhere to the long-term growth strategy
which is based on the following core value: focus on providing natural, healthy
and quality condiments and actively seek to rejuvenate and develop the
traditional quality condiments.

We will endeavour to continue to streamline our cooking wine and soy sauce
portfolio. Through continuous research and development of natural and
healthy products, we aim at creating a brand image of premium quality for “Lao
Heng He”, thereby strengthening the Group’s competitiveness in China’s
cooking wine market as well as providing consumers with more choices of
healthy condiments.

The Group’s operational goal is to maintain and fortify its leadership position
in the cooking wine industry, continue to expand the distribution network of
the Group’s cooking wine products in the national market (@among key cities
and consumers), increase our corporate sales and enlarge the market share
in the naturally-brewed cooking wine industry.

The Group also aims at introducing new condiment products through
research and development and innovation of traditional production techniques
and increasing the quality and profit margin of its condiment products. In
addition, the Group will leverage the current stable agricultural product prices
to accelerate the process of increasing the stock of base wine in earthen jars
which, on one hand, can guard against the predicted risks of future price
increase of agricultural products and, on the other hand, can provide enough
base wine in earthen jars for the Group’s rapid development in the future.

The Group’s operational targets focus on: (i) maintaining customer satisfaction
and market leader position in its product offerings; (i) maintaining the flexibility
in adapting to the local operating environment and establishing an effective
customer feedback system to implement the “customer first and customer-
oriented” marketing philosophy with more resources allocated to meet the
needs of the end customers.

It is also the Group’s operation goal to remain faithful to is core values, inherit
and develop the traditional production method, establish a management
system where product quality and safety comes first. To achieve this, the
Group has stringent control over the whole production and supply chain and
will continue to apply both traditional and modern production methods to
deliver high quality and safety products to our customers.
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The Group would also target to recruit local talents to join our operation,
focusing on providing training to our employees, and lead the Group to
become an international group. With this goal in mind, the Group will recruit
and nurture local talents and offer a suitable platform for our employees to
fully develop their potential.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, Board members, management team and all our employees, as
well as our business partners and customers for their continuous support and
contribution to the Group.

Chen Weizhong
Chairman of the Board

27 March 2015
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
(ANEIE-T

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEO) RERLE(EELEEHTE)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRRRR A

Mr. Wang Chao FiBEAE
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Zhang Bihong 5% 55 54 5 A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYYFHITES
Mr. Shen Zhenchang LR & %k A&

Mr. Lei Jiasu ERBEE

Mr. Ma Chaosong BRI A
COMPANY SECRETARY NAEWE

Mr. Au Wai Keung @ {258 5E 4
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERXK
Mr. Chen Weizhong B 1@ A8 S A

Mr. Au Wai Keung @ {258 5E 4
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES
Mr. Ma Chaosong (Chairman) BENE A (FF)
Mr. Lei Jiasu ERBEE

Mr. Shen Zhenchang =Pt
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SMMEES
Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Chairman) IR S A (EE)
Mr. Lei Jiasu ERBEE

Mr. Ma Chaosong BRI A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

o) B ¥ ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lei Jiasu (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Chaosong
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Balidian Town

Food and Industrial Park
Wuxing District, Huzhou City
Zhejiang 313000, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 606-607, 6th Floor

China Merchants Building
152-155 Connaught Road Central
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
no&w (&)

J=
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEFREBIT
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. LEBRREERITROBRAF
Huzhou Branch N SE AT
No. 120, Tiyuchang Road A
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province AT A 8N
PRC 5512098
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited FRETEETROERA A
Zhili Branch BE X7
No. 583, 587, 589 Zhenbei Road =
Zhili Town LA N T
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province B
PRC ¥ B }£583 » 587 - 5895k
Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd. SHEIRTRMDBER QA
No. 409, Jianguo South Road =8|
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province AT EFEm
PRC 32 B Fg B5 409 5%
COMPLIANCE ADVISOR SHREM
TC Capital Asia Limited R EREMAERR A
Suite 1904, 19/F, Tower 6, The Gateway BENE
Harbour City, TST R E B
Kowloon, Hong Kong BEKE F6RE191E1004 F
N hY -
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND FERGDBFERE
TRANSFER OFFICE
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock code: 2226
Board lot: 500 shares

WEBSITE

http://www.hzlaohenghe.com
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREMABIEE

NTHINAEERETEF(ES) halkE
ERE

Below are brief profiles of the current directors (“Directors”, each a “Director”)
and senior management of the Group.

Date of appointment

Name Age Position as Director

%A Fie B BZEERESAH

Executive Directors

HITES

Chen Weizhong 43 Chairman of the Board, executive Director and 13 May 2013

FoR 187 8 chief executive officer —E-=FRAF+=H
EEEER WTEERERATE

Sheng Mingjian 40 Executive Director and vice general manager 17 December 2013

R ER 42 HITEFELBIARE —T—=f+ZHA++tH

Wang Chao 37 Executive Director and managing director of 17 December 2013

F A sales and marketing —E—=F+ZA+LtH

Non-executive Director

HITEERBERTSREETREE

FHUTES
Zhang Bihong 39 Non-executive Director 17 December 2013
5 385 54 FEBMITEE —E-=F+_-H++tH

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Shen Zhenchang 68 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013

= WIUFMITES =+ A++tH
Lei Jiasu 59 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013
BRE WIUEMITES —ET-=%+_-H++tH
Ma Chaosong 42 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013

SRR BIUIEMITES —E-=%+-H++tH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weizhong (FR#E &), aged 43, is the chairman of the Board,
founder, chief executive officer (“CEQ”) of the Group and the executive
Director. He is primarily responsible for our Group’s overall strategic planning,
recipes use and control, distribution network expansion and overall business
operations. He has over 20 years of experience in the condiment industry in
the PRC and possesses unique information regarding the research,
development and intellectual property related to our products, including the
trade-secret recipes of fermentation starter and cooking wine spices.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREMRAGEE (&)

Mr. Chen started his career in the condiment industry as early as 1990 and
has accumulated extensive experience in the condiment industry since then,
especially in production, research and development, and sales and marketing.
Before founding our Group in 2005, he was the chairman and general
manager of Zhejiang Zhong Wei Brewing Co., Ltd. (“Zhong Wei”) from 1995
to 2012. Mr. Chen completed a business administration advance class at
Zhejiang University (4771 A 2 T i & 12 & A FHETT) in 2008.

Mr. Chen has been a member of the China Condiment Industrial Association
(PR R 1%E) since 2008. He is also the chairman of the Huzhou Rice
Wine Industrial Association (#1/ & /E#€) since 2012.

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (E%BB{#), aged 40, is our vice general manager and
executive Director. Mr. Sheng is primarily responsible for the management of
our Group’s financing activities and assisting Mr. Chen to manage the overall
business operations. He has more than 10 years of experience in the
condiment industry, and has extensive management experience in capital and
business operations. Before joining our Group in 2006, he was the general
manager of Zhong Wei from 2001 to 2006.

Mr. Wang Chao (E#), aged 37, is our managing director of sales and
marketing and executive Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for our
Group’s sales and marketing. He has 15 years of experience in the condiment
industry. Mr. Wang joined Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewing Factory (#i/1 & 18
FEEEERR) (currently Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewery Co., Ltd. (‘Huzhou Lao
Heng He”) in 1998 where he worked in various departments, including
business operation department and finance department. Since 2006, Mr.
Wang worked in management positions in Huzhou Lao Heng He’s customer
service centre and sales and marketing department. Mr. Wang graduated
from Zhejiang Electronic Polytechnic School (#I & EFI LK), a
technical middle school in 1998.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Bihong (3R3%54), aged 39, is our non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhang has more than 18 years of experience in the areas of auditing, tax,
asset valuation and financial management. He is currently a certified tax agent
in China (issued by China Certified Tax Agents Association on 2 June 2000).
Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible for Company’s investor relation work.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENEREMAGEE (&)

Prior to joining our Group in 2012, Mr. Zhang served as the director and chief
financial officer of Tianli Agritech, Inc. (Z2RH 2 E AR A F]), a company
listed on NASDAQ (Stock Code: OINK), from 2010 to 2011. He was a partner
of Beijing Zhong Cheng Xin An Rui Accounting Firm (3t R E LI & 5HED
ET5FT) from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Zhang was the senior manager at BDO-
Reanda Xin Public Accountants (F|ZZE&5HEMEHT) from 2005 to 2008
and served as a senior manager at Inner Mongolia Zhong Tian Hua Zheng
Accounting Firm (R 5 & XES RN E AT from 1995 to 2005. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Inner Mongolia Agricultural College (A5 & #EP7) in 1995
with a diploma in economics (accounting).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Jt#x &), aged 68, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shen has more than 40 years of experience in the cooking wine
industry. From 1971 to 2006, Mr Shen worked with China Shaoxing Rice
Wine Group (/R B1#43 B )5 &= B A R A 7)) (previously known as Shaoxing City
Rice Wine Corporation (43 E1 T 422 7))). Before his retirement from the
China Shaoxing Rice Wine Group in 2006, Mr. Shen was the director of its
office of general affairs.

Mr. Shen is a member of the China Brewing Industry Association (rice wine
branch) (7 B R T ¥ 2 =850 ®), where he has been the deputy council
director and secretary general since 2000.

Additionally, Mr. Shen currently serves as a member of National Wine Brewing
Standard Technology Committee (2 EUEEAEE(LFITZE ), a judge at
the reviewing committee of China Alcoholic Drinks Association Science
Technology Award (7 BB 2 1 & B 17 2¥), and the deputy director of the
editorial board of China Rice Wine magazine (P EI=/H) ).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERERERASREE (&)

Mr. Ma Chaosong (F##2), aged 42, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Ma is a senior accountant (issued by the Beijing Senior
Specialized Technique Qualification Evaluation Committee on 6 January
2006), certified public accountant (issued by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants on 28 September 1999), certified tax agent (issued by
China Certified Tax Agents Association on 11 May 2012) and certified public
valuer (issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC on 24 April 2012) in
China. Since 2000 Mr. Ma has been the chairman of Beijing Xin Li Heng Tax
Agency Co., Ltd. At {EFBF SN 15 F7 A R & £2 7). He has more than
11 years of experience in auditing, accounting and taxation. In May 2011, Mr.
Ma was appointed as an independent director of China National Complete
Plant Import & Export Corp. Ltd. (R H A % (7 B PR A 7)) (SZSE: 000151).
From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Ma was a project manager at Zhong Ce Accounting
Firm (ORI =R S 75 7).

In 1997, Mr. Ma graduated from the Research Institute of Fiscal Science,
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (97308 EXEHEMFFTRT), with a master’s
degree in accounting. He graduated from Renmin University of China (7B A
R AE)in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.

Mr. Lei Jiasu (F=5#), aged 59, is our independent non-executive Director.
Currently, Mr. Lei is the director of the Research Centre of Chinese Enterprise
Growth and Economic Security in Beijing Tsinghua University (/&£ A £
ERRERQEL2HIH ). Since 1996, he has been a lecturer in the
School of Economics and Management of Beijing Tsinghua University (&5 2 A
BmE IR ELT). Between 1994 and 1996, he worked as a post-doctoral
researcher in Beijing Tsinghua University. From 1983 to 1989, Mr. Lei taught
as a lecturer in Xi’an Electronic and Technology University (7% & 1R A Z).

In 2001, Mr. Lei was awarded the title of professor by Beijing Tsinghua
University. He graduated as a doctoral research fellow from the School of
Economics and Management of Beijing Tsinghua University (/& 2 A 2485 %E
FRERT) in 1993.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE

Name Age Year joined Position

®E FiR A E 45 B

Chen Weizhong 43 2005 Chairman of the Board, executive
Director and chief executive officer

R & A8 ZETRF BEEEEH WITEER
BERHITE

Sheng Mingjian 40 2006 Executive Director and vice general
manager

A ZEERF WITEERBIAKE

Wang Chao 37 2006 Executive Director and managing
director of sales and marketing

T —ETRF WITESEREERTSERES
FER e

Wan Peiyao 43 2005 Director of production

BB —ETRHF FEHEE

Zhao Yaqin 37 2005 Financial controller

il —ETRHF MR E

Mr. Chen Weizhong (BR#&8), aged 43, is the chairman of the Board, CEO  BRET B L% 435 REFGXE - BRMT
and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above underthe B RHAITEF - R BEFBHNAF R L
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — Executve XIEFRESREBABREE —HTEF|—
Directors” to this annual report. ffi o

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (82B3%2), aged 40, is our vice general manager and BREA@ L4 - 405 REMOEIALE R TT
executive Director. His biographical details are set out above under the EF R BEFBHNAFR EX[EFER
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — Executive =R EIEABRBE —#$17EE]—5 -
Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Wang Chao (E#8), aged 37, is our managing director of sales and EBEE 375 ARMHNHEELRTSHEES
marketing and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above FEHEKLELHITER - RZBEEFBHN A
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — FREXIEELERERBABREE —H17E
Executive Directors” to this annual report. E R
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERERERASREE (&)

Mr. Wan Peiyao (B1Z#8), aged 43, is our director of production. He is
primarily responsible for the Group’s production management. He has more
than 11 years of experience in the condiment and cooking wine industry. Mr.
Wan joined our Group in 2005, and has worked in various departments
including workshop operation department, cooking wine production
department and plant operation department. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Wan was the plant manager and executive assistant to the general manager
of Huzhou Ganchang Wine Company (#1132 £ B2 G5 A 7)) from 2000 to
2005. Mr. Wan passed the test for first-class sommelier of PRC (BIZ — 4%
SEEM) in December 2012.

Mr. Wan graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#1/T L3 AZ2)
with a bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering (Biochemistry) in 1995.

Ms. Zhao Yaqin (#7#Z), aged 37, is our financial controller. Ms. Zhao is
responsible for the Group’s financing, account and tax matters. She has more
than 11 years of experience in the areas of financial management, accounting
practices and tax arrangements. She joined our Group in 2005 as manager of
our finance department and became our financial controller in 2012. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Zhao was the manager of finance department of
Zhong Wei from 2003 to 2005.

Ms. Zhao received a diploma in accounting from the Central Radio and
Television University (F7 9 EZFEE AR K E) in 2006.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of our business review, please refer to the section on “Chairman’s

Statement” on pages 5 to 10 to this annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The key financial indicators of the Group are as follows:

Income statement items

Sales

Gross profit

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company

EBITDA

Earnings per share
(RMB cents)™e®
— basic and diluted

Selected financial ratios

Gross profit margin (%)

Net profit margin attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company (%)

EBITDA margin (%)

Return on equity holders’ equity (%)
Gearing ratio™®"”

W#EKRIEE

iH & 58

EH
RAREBERERA
J& 15 A
BRAE IE FTER
1 55 7 A R
BREAR
(/\E’ﬁ%/ﬁ)(%a)
—EARR#E

B R

EHE (%)
ARREBESTAA
& A 75 M) 7B R (%)
BRAME HE HER
B 55 A ) 7B 2R (%)
fEZSF5 A A 5 B (%)
B AR B fE

Notes:

(@)  Please refer to Note 14 to the financial statements of this annual report

for the calculation of earnings per share.

(b)  The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net

debt. Net debt includes total debt net of cash and cash equivalents.

B 1 2 59 v 82 53 i

E%EE

BEREMEBRB 5 F2HAAFHRFES
E10EM[EFEHRE] & -

1 % [0 B8

BE
REERMNEEFBHEZOT :
Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+—-HLEE

Year-on-year

2014 2013 change
—g-pmE -T-= I

RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

AR¥T T ARBTT

668,426 530,433 26.0%

386,498 313,069 23.5%

211,603 174,207 21.5%

282,385 234,975 20.2%

46.5 (10.1%)

59.0% (2.0%)

32.8% (3.4%)

44.3% 4.7%)

58.8% (69.9%)

54.2% (52.2%)

[t &t -
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Revenue

The revenue of the Group, increased by 26.0% from RMB530.4 million in
2013 to RMB668.4 million in 2014, primarily reflecting an increase in the sales
of our cooking wine products, soy sauce products and vinegar products.

WA

REFNKRABR T —=FNARE5304H
BT M26.0%E =T — N F K AR K668.4
BEL FTERBEMHBESR BHEMK
BB G R SH S RGN o

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=+—-BLEE

2014 2013
—E-—OF —E—=%F
Percentage Percentage
of total of total
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue Change
HBERAE AT
ON ballnd WA 7o 1
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR T % ARMETIT % ARBEFIT %
Cooking wine BB
Premium A 98,708 14.8% 92,600 17.5% 6,108 6.6%
High-end = It 110,696 16.6% 90,388 17.0% 20,308 22.5%
Medium-range R i 245,745 36.8% 191,171 36.0% 54,574 28.5%
Mass-market FiE 17,767 2.6% 19,223 3.6% (1,456) (7.6%)
Subtotal INF 472,916 70.8% 393,382 741% 79,534 20.2%
Soy sauce £h 106,353 15.9% 101,899 19.2% 4,454 4.4%
Vinegar [ 68,634 10.3% 14,239 2.7% 54,395 382.0%
Other products HihEm 20,523 3.0% 20,913 4.0% (390) (1.9%)
Total AEf 668,426 100.0% 530,433 100.0% 137,993 26.0%

Revenue from cooking wine products increased by 20.2% from RMB393.4
million for the year of 2013 to RMB472.9 milion for the year of 2014,
reflecting increases in all product lines except for our mass-market cooking
wine products. With our great effort on enhancing the “Lao Heng He” (“21870")
cooking wine brand and continually focusing on producing high quality
cooking wine products, the sales of our cooking wine products kept
increasing in 2014, especially the star products, such as 15% ABV Cooking

Cooking Wine (B £ #1H) and Lao Heng He Cooking Wine (18 F14HH).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from the Group’s soy sauce products increased by 4.4% from
RMB101.9 million for the year of 2013 to RMB106.4 million for the year of
2014. In 2014, the Group streamlined its soy sauce product offering, with
main focus on several premium products such as Premium Flavored Soy
Sauce (#f_F #1245 4 ) and Mushroom Dark Soy Sauce (£ % 2 ).

Revenue from the Group’s vinegar products increased by 382.0% from
RMB14.2 million for the year of 2013 to RMB68.6 million for the year of 2014,
which was mainly attributable to the growing market popularity and the
ramping up of production capacity of the naturally brewed vinegar, such as
Crab Vinegar (%7i), Rose Rice Vinegar (B E2KEE) and Premium Zhejiang
Vinegar (= G@TEs).

The Group’s shift in focus to the cooking wine business affected the Group’s
other products, which decreased by 1.9% from RMB20.9 million for the year
of 2013 to RMB20.5 million for the year of 2014.

The Group believes the outstanding performance of the Group’s sales is
largely contributed to (i) increasing market recognition of the “Lao Heng He” (“%
{8F1") brand; (i) consistent superior quality of the “Lao Heng He” (“£180”)
products; (i) enhancing efforts on the Group’s marketing and promotion
activities; (iv) expansion of the Group’s distribution network with further
market penetration; (v) growing consumer consciousness of food safety and
preference for naturally-brewed cooking wine products which the Group
introduced to the market; and (vi) rising disposable income level in the PRC.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 29.7% from RMB217.4 million in
2013 to RMB281.9 million in 2014. The increase in cost of sales was largely
in line with the increase in sales revenue.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit increased by 23.5%
from RMB313.1 million in 2013 to RMB386.5 million in 2014. However, the
gross profit margin decreased slightly from 59.0% in 2013 to 57.8% in 2014,
primarily due to the increased packaging cost as the Group upgraded some
key products’ packaging design and packaging quality.

E 12 5 o B 73 it (58)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Other Income and Gains

Other income decreased by 49.0% from RMB11.5 million in 2013 to RMB5.9
million in 2014. Other income consists primarily of subsidy received, gains
from sales of materials and interest income. The decrease in other income is
primarily due to the decrease in subsidy received from RMB10.3 million in
2013 to RMB2.9 million in 2014, partially offset by the increase in interest
income from RMB49,000 in 2013 to RMB1.3 million in 2014.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising expenses,
marketing expenses, promotion expenses, travelling expenses, and
remuneration of our sales employees.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased from RMB25.7
million in 2013 to RMB40.3 million in 2014, and the distribution expenses as
a percentage of the Group’s revenue increased from 4.8% for 2013 to 6.0%
for 2014, as the Group conducted extensive marketing and promotional
activities to strengthen the “Lao Heng He” (“218%0”) brand recognition and
value.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 9.9% from RMB74.1 million in
2013 to RMB81.4 million in 2014. This increase mainly reflected an increase
in the research and development costs and staff costs.

Finance Cost

Finance cost increased by 29.5% from RMB17.6 million in 2013 to RMB22.9
million in 2014. The increase in finance costs primarily reflected an increase in
interest on bank loans from RMB17.6 million for the year of 2013 to RMB22.9
million for the year of 2014 as a result of an increase in the average balance
of the Group’s bank loans in 2014 to support the expansion of the Group’s
business.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the profit before tax increased by 18.9% from
RMB207.2 million in 2013 to RMB246.2 million 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 5.1% from RMB32.9 million in 2013 to
RMB34.6 million in 2014, with the effective income tax rate decreased from
15.9% in 2013 to 14.1% in 2014, mainly due to more tax incentive obtained
on eligible expenditures in 2014. Subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China,
including Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited and Huzhou Laohenghe
Wine Co., Limited, having been granted the “Certificate of New and Advanced
Technology Enterprise” and are entitled to the beneficial tax rate of 15% for
three years starting from 1 January 2013. As such, the corporate income tax
of the Group for the year of 2014 in respect of its operations in the PRC has
been provided at the rate of 15% (2013: 15%) on the taxable profit.

Profit Attributable to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Company

For the foregoing reasons, profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company increased from RMB174.2 million in 2013 to RMB211.6 million in
2014.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Company

Basic earnings per share decreased from RMB46.5 cents for 2013 to
RMB41.8 cents for 2014. Decrease in earnings per share was attributable to
the new Shares issued upon the IPO on Listing Date and the new Shares
issued upon exercise of the over-allotment option on 13 February 2014 that
resulted in an enlarged share capital.

Net Profit Margin

Net profit margin decreased 1.1 percentage points from 32.8% in 2013 to
31.7% in 2014. The decrease in net profit margin was mainly attributable to
an increase in cost of sales resulting in a decrease in gross profit margin.
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FINANCIAL AND LIQUIDITY POSITION

Trade and Receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB88.9 million as of 31 December 2013
to RMB187.9 million as of 31 December 2014, mainly reflecting increases in
sales.

Details of the ageing analysis of trade receivables are set out in Note 19 to
the financial statements in this annual report. The turnover days of trade
receivables increased from 52 days in 2013 to 76 days in 2014, which was
mainly due to a larger amount of sales incurred during the last three months
of 2014, as compared to the last three months of 2013 and the increase in
sales to higher category distributors, which had longer credit period.

The Group implemented a multi-category distributor system to manage
distribution of its products since 2011. The Group classified its distributors
into Categories A (the highest), B, C and D based on their distribution scale
and capabilities.

Inventories

Inventories increased from RMB326.7 million as of 31 December 2013 to
RMB830.5 million as of 31 December 2014, primarily due to increase in work
in progress by RMB471.7 million. A substantial part of the inventories of the
Group was contributed by work in progress, which mainly represented the
base wine, base soy sauce and base vinegar in the brewing period. Due to
the long production cycle and short sales cycle, the Group needs to keep an
abundant stock of well-aged base wine to cope with the rapid sales growth in
the future. With leverage of the proceeds from the IPO and the funding
support from the banks, the Group expanded its production scale
significantly, and the stock of base wine recorded a significant increase, to
ensure the Group has sufficient work in progress stock not only for the short-
term production, but also for the expansion in the coming years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors the level of inventory maintained by its distributors on a
regular basis. The Group’s sales representatives maintain frequent telephone
or email communications with each of its Categories A, B and C distributors,
review their monthly inventory reports and visit their warehouses on a regular
basis. The Group’s sales representatives visit its Category A and B
distributors’ warehouses at least on a monthly basis and those Category C
distributors at least every three months to ensure that they keep optimal
stock level and the Group’s products are sold to end customers within the
shelf life. The Group generally expects its distributors to maintain sufficient
stock for five to 20 days of supply. In the event a distributor maintains stocks
of more than 20 days of supply, the relevant sales representatives will assist
such distributor in marketing and promotional activities and suggest smaller-
sized orders to be placed for the succeeding periods to minimize excess
inventory.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB117.5 million (31 December 2013: RMB70.3 million) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Borrowings

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
RMB417.8 million (31 December 2013: RMB 233.0 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB218.5 million (31 December 2013: RMB44.0 million). As at 31 December
2014, the Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings of an aggregate
amount of RMB417.8 million (31 December 2013: RMB233.0 million), which
were denominated in RMB with interest rates from 5.80% to 7.20% per
annum.
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The Group’s principal sources of liquidity includes cash generated from
operations, proceeds from IPO and bank and other borrowings. The Group
uses cash from such sources for working capital, production facility
expansions, other capital expenditures and debt service requirements. The
Group expects these uses will continue to be its principal uses of cash in the
future, and that its cash flow will be sufficient to fund its ongoing business
requirements. Meanwhile, the Group has decided to further broaden its
financing channel to improve our capital structure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment as at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
RMB16.4 million (31 December 2013: RMB14.2 million), which was mainly
related to construction in progress for expansion of plant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material contingent
liability.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Company has no material acquisition and disposal as at 31 December
2014,

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group was 25.9% as at 31 December 2014,
representing a decrease of 52.2% as compared to 54.2% as at 31 December
2013.

The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net debt as

at 31 December 2014. Net debt includes total debt net of cash and cash
equivalents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans which are secured by the assets of the
Group, are included in Note 15, 16, 18 and 24(b) to the financial statements
of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB117.5 million, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
RMB20.6 million and leasehold land with a carrying amount of RMB11.5
million were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Except as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has not entered into any
off-balance sheet guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the
payment obligations of any third party. It does not have any interest in any
unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit
support to it or engages in leasing or hedging or research and development
or other service with it.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

For details of the Group’s business outlook, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 10 of this annual report.

MARKET RISKS

Credit Risk

The Group’s major concentration of credit risk arises from the Group’s
exposure to a substantial number of trade receivables, other receivables, time
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s trade receivables are
typically unsecured and derived from revenue earned from customers in the
PRC, which are exposed to credit risk. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit limit, and has strict control over credit limits of trade and other
receivables.

In addition, the balance of trade receivables is monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are disclosed in Notes 19 and 20 to the financial statements
in this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Liquidity Risk

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management policy to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available funding
through capital contribution and bank borrowings. The Company’s
management also monitors the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants. For details on the maturity profile of the
Group'’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2014, please refer to Note 34
to the financial statements in this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND WELFARE
CONTRIBUTION

As at the 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 329 employees (31
December 2013: 202). The employees’ remuneration packages are
determined with reference to their experience and qualifications and general
market conditions. The remuneration policies, bonus, evaluation systems and
training programs for employees of our Group were implemented continuously
according to policies disclosed in the 2013 annual report and no change has
been made in 2014.

The total remuneration paid to the Group’s employees (excluding directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately RMB15.7 million (2013: approximately RMB10.9
million), which included the Group’s contribution to the employee benefit plan
for the year 2014 of RMB1.7 million (2013: RMB1.1 million). Details of the
employee benefit expense are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

The following table sets forth the Group’s full-time employees by function as
of 31 December 2014:
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Number of
employees % of total
EEAE HHEFEIE
Production FE 254 77.2
Management and administration EEBERITHRER 11 3.3
Sales and marketing $HE K2 i 19 5.8
Quality Control, Research and Development  'E &35 - AfF3% &% E At 45 13.7

and others

Total 45T 329 100
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group has designed an evaluation system to assess the performance of
its employees. This system forms the basis of determination on employees’
salaries, bonuses and promotions. We believe the salaries and bonuses that
our Group’s employees receive are competitive with market rates. Under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, our Group is subject to social insurance
contribution plans, work-related injury insurance and maternity insurance
schemes.

We place a strong emphasis on providing training to our employees in order
to enhance their technical and product knowledge as well as comprehension
of industry quality standards and work place safety standards. We also
provide regular on-site and off-site training to help our employees to improve
their skills and knowledge. These training courses range from further
educational studies to basic production process and skill training to
professional development courses for its management personnel.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year of 2014, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed, or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year of 2014, the Group made charitable donations of
RMB1,510,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

IEREB RS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standards of corporate
governance practice for enhancing accountability and transparency of the
Company to its investors and Shareholders. The Board and the management
of the Company are committed to conducting the Group’s businesses in a
transparent and responsible manner, and they believe good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management,
a healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing
Shareholders’ value in the long term.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Governance Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (as amended from time to time) (the “Listing Rules”) as
its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Governance Code except the
deviations as set out below in this report.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to achieve and maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices.

(B) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors and the
Group’s senior management who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2014. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of
the Model Code by the senior management of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(C) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Company,
including establishing and overseeing the Company’s strategic
development, business plans, financial objectives, capital investment
proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Company.

The Board gave their input and considered the priorities and initiatives,
aiming at developing a sustainable plan for the Company to generate
and preserve its long-term corporate values and to achieve its business
strategies and objectives.

The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its powers that
it may think fit to a Director or member of senior management of the
Company. The Board has formulated clear and specific rules and
policies on such delegation of power to facilitate efficient operation of
the Company and is supported by three board committees together
the “Board Committees”, which are audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”).

Directors must dedicate sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs. Besides, the Company also requested all Directors to disclose
to the Company annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
with an indication of the time involved.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance for all Directors in
respect of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXBIBHRS (B

Board Members

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Board consist of the following seven Directors,
including three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEQO)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian

Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Bihong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Lei Jiasu

Mr. Ma Chaosong

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among the Directors of the Company.

An updated list of the roles and functions of Directors is maintained on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and the
Company shall keep updating whenever necessary. The details of the
Directors’ biographical information are contained in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy on 25 March 2014
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee will evaluate the balance and blend of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity experiences, including
but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational background,
and merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company at all times complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules, which requires an issuer’s board of directors to
have at least one-third of its members being independent non-
executive directors. In addition, the Company has duly complied with
Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, which requires the
issuer’s board must include at least three independent non-executive
directors and at least one of the independent non-executive directors
to have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Mr. Ma Chaosong, chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and
being one of the independent non-executive Director, possesses over
10 years of experience in the financial field. Together with another two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Shen
Zhenchang, all of whom have wide exposure and experience in the
cooking wine industry and management field, provide the Group with
diversified expertise and experience.

Their views and participation in Board and Board committee meetings
bring independent judgment and advice on issues relating to the
Group’s strategies, performance, conflicts of interest, management
process and to ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken
into account.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors on their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers that
each of them be independent. The Board believes that the present
structure of the Board can ensure the independence and objectivity of
the Board and provide an effective system of checks and balance to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Company.

The Board considers that the balance between executive and non-
executive Director is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of Shareholders and
the Group as a whole. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership. The Board has separate and independent access
to the senior management and the company secretary at all times.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, are clearly
identified as such in all corporate communications containing the
names of the Directors.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term. The initial term of
office for each Director is a term of three years from their respective
appointment date and is subject to retirement by rotation at an annual
general meeting (the “AGM?”) at least once every three years. According
to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation at
each AGM provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM. In addition, the Articles
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment, whereas any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following AGM. The Director appointed by the Board as
aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting of the members convened Bt g RABAIKARRRZESRITL
and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a director at any time W F i IRERFER RNIRR4NE] A
before the expiration of his/her period of office notwithstanding to the BARETHEMNRERNE - B4R FH

contrary in the Articles or in any agreement between the Company and
such Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles, Mr. Chen Weizhong, Mr.
Shen Zhenchang and Mr. Ma Chaosong will retire from office as
Director by rotation at the forthcoming 2015 AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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EEREIB IS (&)

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

The Company has regularly provided the Directors with information of
relevant training courses. The Directors have provided the Company
with a record of their training received in 2014. A summary of the
Directors participation in continuous professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

ESCRHEEXRE

ARBEMAEERIEEZIRIEN
EM-EFZAARARRRENR_T—
MEMBEXBINCE EFREE—
E-NME+-_A=+—HILFEZ2HEN
FEFEEIBIET

Attending briefings/ Reading materials/
seminars/conferences regulatory updates
HEEN NS MEER
EXE EF EREEHER
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Chen Weizhong BR1&T H A v 4
Mr. Sheng Mingjian B A 4 4
Mr. Wang Chao TRSEAE v v
Non-executive directors IFRITEE
Mr. Zhang Bihong 3R A L A& v v
Independent directors BIIHNTEF
Mr. Shen Zhenchang k=it v v
Mr. Lei Jiasu EREEAE v 4
Mr. Ma Chaosong BN EE v v

Internally, the Company’s senior management, including the executive
Directors, will implement a training plan and conduct training sessions
for its key staff members on a continuing basis. The Directors are
required to submit to the Company details of training sessions
undertaken by them in each financial year for the Company’s
maintenance of proper training records of the Directors.

ARAEREEE (BRATESR)TH
ERNRERBIAE HER/SETIESR
TREFIREG - EFARAARRARER
BEREMBFEMEZNIZIREF
B NEARRZAFEESHIILHE -
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Governance Code, the Board should
meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals and under code provision A.2.7
of the Governance Code, the chairman of the board should at least
annually hold meeting with the non-executive Directors (including
independent non- executive Directors) without the executive Directors
present.

A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings for 2015 has been
provided to the Directors. At least 14 days’ notice for all regular Board
meetings will be given to all Directors and all Directors must be given
the opportunity to include items or businesses for discussion in the
agenda. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
Relevant agenda and accompanying Board papers will be sent to all
Directors at least three days in advance of every regular Board meeting.

All matters and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed, will be recorded in minutes of
Board meeting or other Board committees meetings in sufficient detail.
Draft and final versions of minutes of Board/Board committee meetings
will be sent to all Directors/committee members for comment and
records respectively, within reasonable time after the respective
meetings are held. The final versions of these minutes are kept by the
Company secretary of the Company and are available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director and auditor
of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board convened a total HE-_FT—NF+_A=+—HLIHF
of 5 Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1 B ERARAEBENEFERETE

Nomination Committee meeting, 2 Audit Committee meetings, based
on the need of the operation and business development of the
Company. Besides, the Directors also attended the 2014 AGM, which
is the only general meeting held in 2014, to understand the views of the
shareholders.
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All Board members attended the said meetings in person or by means
via telephonic conferencing, which constituting presence at a meeting
as if he has been present in person under the Articles. The Board
intends to meet at least four times per year in the future, and the
chairman of the Board intends to hold at least one meeting per year
with the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board considers that all
meetings have been legally and properly convened in compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations (including the Listing Rules and the
Articles). With the assistance of the company secretary, the chairman
of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board meetings and Board
committee meetings are convened in accordance with the requirements
set out in the Articles, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules. The Director’s attendance at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Attendance at Board
and Board Committee Meetings” below.

Upon making reasonable request to the Company, Board members
have the right to seek independent professional advice or services at
the Company’s expense to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving substantial Shareholder(s)
or Director(s) arise and the Board considers the matter to be material,
the Company will hold a physical Board meeting to discuss and
consider the matter, instead of passing a written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have
no material interest in the transaction should be required to be present
at that Board meeting.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee HEEESERESZESEE
Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board EEEHER T NFRTHNEEE
committee meetings and 2014 AGM held during 2014 is set out as Y %%x gggzxk_ZT—NO
follows. FREBFRENBAFINAT -

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee 2014
meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM
—E-OF
EEE B RrE i BREBEF
Name of director EERR % ZEEgR ZEEgE ZEEER g
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Weizhong PeR 187 A 58 A
(Chairman of the Board) (BE=gxfE) 5/6 N/ATEA NATEA N/A 7N A 1/1
Mr. Sheng Mingjian XA % A 5/6 N/AT#EAR NATEA N/A ~3E A 11
Mr. Wang Chao TiEBLAE 5/6 N/AT#EA NATEA N/A 738 A 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHiTEE
Mr. Zhang Bihong oR 98 54 %% A 5/5 NAMER NATEA N/A g AR 1/1
Independent non-executive BN TEF
Directors
Mr. Shen Zhenchang IR & 5 A 5/5 2/2 1/1 11 0/1
Mr. Lei Jiasu BRWELE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ma Chaosong BEAM A 5/5 2/2 1/1 11 1/1

(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE D) EERESITHRAE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Governance Code provides that the roles ERTAZSFAMESCEA21IERTE - +
of the chairman and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be FHERATE(ERERTEDNAG
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The EEFED  WAERE - AFRME E
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the CEO should FEEFEATECHBEN Y TREER
be clearly established and set out in writing. REWAEEEAFTA -
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Mr. Chen Weizhong (“Mr. Chen”) has continually served as both the
chairman and CEO of the Company since its incorporation. He is
responsible for managing the Board and the business of the Group.
Although this deviates from the practice in code provision A.2.1 of the
Governance Code, Mr. Chen has considerable and extensive
experience in the cooking wine industry and management in general.
The Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Company to have
an executive chairman so the Board can benefit from his knowledge of
the business and his capability in leading the Board in discussing the
strategy and long-term development of the Group.

From a corporate governance point of view, the decisions of the Board
are made collectively by way of voting and therefore the chairman
should not be able to monopolize the voting result. The Board
considers that the balance of power between the Board and the senior
management can still be maintained under the current structure and
there is no imminent need to change the arrangement. The
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committees also regularly
review the structure and composition of the Board and will make
appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining and implementing a high standard
of corporate governance practices.

Mr. Chen, as the chairman of the Board, is responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive in a timely manner, adequate information which is
accurate, clear, complete and reliable. He ensures that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings. Mr. Chen is
also responsible for ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established, all Directors make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, and the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Under the leadership of Mr. Chen, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. Appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Mr.
Chen will ensure appropriate steps are taken and the Shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

A culture of openness and constructive relations among Directors are
promoted within the Board, facilitating effective contribution of non-
executive Directors and ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive Directors.
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In the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Chen, the chairman of the
Board has met with the independent non-executive Directors (without
the presence of the executive Directors) once to discuss, and obtain
independent views of, the Board affairs.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Functions and Duties of the Board

The Board supervises the management of business and affairs of the
Company. The primary duties of the Board include:

(@  overall management of the business and strategic development;
(b)  deciding business plans and investment plans;

(c)  monitoring the ongoing operation of the Company and to ensure
that it is managed in the best interests of the Shareholders as a
whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders;

(d)  convening general meetings and reporting to the Shareholders;
and

(e)  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred by
Shareholders in general meetings.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility of daily operations,
business strategies and day to day management of the Company to
the CEO and the senior management.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Governance Code
including:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
Directors, senior management and employees of the Company;
and

(e)  toreview the Company’s compliance with the Governance Code
and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is supported by the Board Committees, and the Board has
delegated various responsibilities to the Board Committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
committee. All Board committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference which are available
to public on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has provided the Board Committees with sufficient
resources and the Board committees may seek independent
professional advice as and when required at the Company’s expense.

The senior management, under the leadership of the CEQO, is delegated
by the Board the authority and responsibility for the daily operations
and management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions to be entered by the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 17 December 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22
of the Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the Governance Code.
The Audit Committee has three members, namely Mr. Ma Chaosong,
Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Shen Zhenchang. Mr. Ma Chaosong, the
Company’s independent non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and possess the appropriate
professional qualifications required under the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee has access to professional advise, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems of the Company, nominate and
monitor external auditor, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee has
convened two meetings, with all members present in person or through
telephonic conferencing, during which the following works were
performed:

° Assess the independence of the Company’s auditors;

o Discuss with external auditors about the scope of work and fees
in respect of their audit work for the year ended 31 December

%V;émmix%ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ%$
REIMP B RMZRF BB EE
ErkEREESE - k%&ﬁﬁﬂk
ZHE EEEREFUREBETESS
EroEaBREREMF-

BE-_ZT-NF+_A=1T—HLLF
B ERZESEARMAEE 28
W%ﬁ%&% mEgEAALEESE
FEUL AR - AT TS T

o FHAEARRZEENEEILIE

. BIIEEZHEMTREREERNERE
—E—NUEFE+_A=Z+—HIF

2014; EEZIENIESERER
. Met with the Company’s external auditor to discuss the audit . BARNBHINEZEMEE - &

procedures and accounting issues;

° Reviewed and discussed the audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the unaudited interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 with the senior management
of the Company and external auditor;

o Reviewed the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
other issues related to the Company’s accounting practice; and

° Appointment of external auditors (subject to AGM approval) and
arrangements for the employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the above meeting

is set out in the above section headed “Attendance at Board and Board
Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 17
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2 of
the Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee has three
members, namely Mr. Shen Zhenchang, Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Ma
Chaosong. Mr. Shen Zhenchang, the Company’s independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has access
to professional advise, if required, and is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review,
determine and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of the remuneration (including bonuses and other
compensation) payable to the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to establish a formal
and transparent procedure for development of remuneration policy, and
ensuring no Director or his/her associate is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee will consult with
chairman of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company held one meeting in
2014 with all members present in person or through telephonic
conferencing, to review and make recommendations on the existing
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management. The
attendance of the Remuneration Committee members at the above
meeting is set out in the section headed “Attendance at Board and
Board Committee Meetings” above.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on
websites of the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange.

EEEBHRS (B

FMEES
KRR ZE—=F+=ZA++tH&KI
ﬁM§AE HEmBe®EEDERE
MR B FE3.25 32616 A M EASTE 2
FAMEXEBA2KHIE - FEZEEE A
—EZKE BIIRER4E  ERFEALE
REBMEE - RARIMNBIUIEWNITE
ERREALECDEZTATHEZES =
F-FHEESRENEXER (WEH
D) WERHZRZERUNEBEITERS -

FHZEENIZRAR/BRT RETE
NFPEERSRERENHFM(2IETE

AREME) BERRERE Yot mE
ZoRHHEBESE URBEERML

PHRHEEER

FMEZE A BRI H B ER
EﬁEL%FZ&V’Iﬁ%ﬁE§$
HEBBEAZERE S H B F M
iﬁakﬁE@ﬁﬁ§$m B 2
MEEFIFNER-

KRBlFMEEER T —WFRIT—
RGE iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiuaﬁgﬁﬁ
AHEEH Mﬁ%%§$&m@a
BEEMNREFHEELLREEREE
Eo%MxﬂaﬁﬂﬁfLQQ%Z%
MEREXHEEESGRESZEY

g —fe

FHZEENBRELEINAR
x%%%ﬁﬁ%o

ZENBEBRAR —Z-HFFR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXBIBHRS (B

46

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Governance Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

BIEERTHZ
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o
;?
@

Number of Individual

FRE(ARY) A
Nil = 1,000,000 %= 1,000,000 5
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 —
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,001-2,000,000 —
Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 FNEEREE T —UF+ZA=*

December 2014 are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 17 December
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with code provision
A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the Governance Code. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Lei Jiasu, Mr. Shen Zhenchang
and Mr. Ma Chaosong. Mr. Lei Jiasu, the Company’s independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has access to
professional advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
compositions to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying suitably
qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning of
Directors. Furthermore, it also assesses the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in 2014, during
which the diversity, structure, size and composition of the Board, the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for re-election at the
2014 AGM were reviewed and considered, and relevant
recommendation was made to the Board. The attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the above meeting is set out in the
section headed “Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”
above.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee takes
into account the various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee discussed and
agreed on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommends them to the Board for adoption.
The Nomination Committee considers an appropriate balance of
diversity perspective of the Board is maintained. The Board Diversity
Policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee annually, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee makes reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge of
the candidate, board diversity aspects and the amount of time and
effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities. External recruitment professionals might be engaged to
carry out selection process when necessary.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has appointed TC Capital Asia Limited as its compliance
advisor pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule
3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the compliance advisor will advise the
Company under the following circumstances:

o the publication of any regulatory announcement, circular or
financial report;

° where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or connected
transaction, is contemplated including share issues and share
repurchases;

° where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of the IPO in
a manner different from that detailed in the Prospectus or where
the Company’s business activities, developments or results
deviate from any forecast, estimate, or other information as set
out in the Prospectus; and

° where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the Company
under Rule 13.10 of the Listing Rules.

The term of the appointment has commenced on the Listing Date and
will end on the date on which the Company distributes the annual
report in respect of the financial results for the first full financial year
commencing after the Listing Date in accordance with Rule 13.46 of
the Listing Rules and such appointment may be subject to extension by
mutual agreement.

(G) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
Ernst & Young, during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out
below:

KRR BB EMRAEAIME £
ERMERATMNERARETHEESRE
Mo iBiE E R BIE3A23E  AREM
BHATERBAARRERER

o TIEAEMEE QS - WKW
=aa

e RMEFTARBATAMRIH X
BERGNRF(BREBMNETRRK
7B ) B

e KRRARBRAABEMBIRIEZ
BERZARNNABKRERMFL
FORARRREBRLE  BRIE
BIREE AR E R AT E 2 TR
BatsHEmER &

o B FTARIE ETHAR A S 13.101K M
RABHEHBERE -

HERENEHCH LT AMERLG I
HEARBRE EHRAIE13.46 155 £
[ERER SRR R0 =R EEE-35 N €y g: 0l )
BEERBFREADER MUEZEA
RETTWHE T IAEHE

(G) # B am BN <=

BE_Z-WNF+-_A=+—HILF
B BENRENTARBINEZEE L
KGR EBRZMEHI T

Remuneration Paid/Payable

e EAHE

RMB

Service Category bR 75 58 B AR

Audit Services 1% AR 7 1,200,000
Non-audit Services IEZ AR

— Agreed upon procedures on interim report —mHREEERRF 200,000

Total FEE 1,400,000
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The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors for annual
audit and non-audit services is reasonable. There has been no major
disagreement between the auditors and the management of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation to the
Board as to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the
Company'’s external auditors for the financial year ending 31 December
2015 which is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held on 29 May 2015 (2015
AGM”).

(H) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR

FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” contained in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal controls and
conducting regular review on the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
maintaining of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations. However, the
system can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
misstatements or losses.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. Management
of the Company provides all relevant information to the Board, giving its
members sufficient information and explanation that it needs to
discharge their responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee and
the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company, respectively including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board considers that there are no significant defects in the
Company’s internal control systems in terms of completeness,
reasonableness and effectiveness.

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board
for its decision. The management team of the Company holds meetings
regularly to review and discuss with executive Directors on daily
operational issues, financial and operating performance as well as to
monitor and ensure the management properly implement the directions
and strategies set by the Board.

The senior management of the Company has provided the Board with
sufficient explanation and information to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval.
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(J) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Wai Keung (“Mr. Au”) served as the company secretary of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014. Mr. Au is a
director, a shareholder and the founder of Arion and Associates
Limited, a corporate secretarial and accounting services provider in
Hong Kong. Mr. Au possesses the professional qualifications that the
Stock Exchange has considered acceptable and has taken no less
than 15 hours of professional training during the year ended 31
December 2014.

Mr. Au’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chen

Weizhong, the chairman, CEO and executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Au is responsible for providing advice to the Board on corporate
governance matters.

(K) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company (www.hzlaohenghe.com) and Stock Exchange after each
Shareholders’ meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder to attend and
vote at a general meeting or to appoint a proxy, who needs not be a
Shareholder, to attend the meeting and vote thereat on his/her/its
behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons for
election as Directors, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

W)

(K)

FEIGIRDS ()

DRAMWE
HE-Z—NF+ZA=+—HIEHF
f BEREE(TRELEE] EELRRDA
NAME—B - BEEAR—REBADL
¥MERSHRBEENTINLGFE
BHERAARIZES %%&%%A
BREEBEBIAMRAZEEER
RBEZZT—NF+=A=+— Eiﬁ
EBEITVRI5/NEZBEE -

BEERARA 2T EBMAREAT

TR ERHOERATESRGL L
A oo

BAEARAERE N BEOESEE
BER

IR R HE A

BARBE BRI 26 RAER  BRBRAE

FREBEANEXRSH(BIER g‘ﬂlf‘u'l
R)REBURER-BIE EHHRA
ﬁFk%KAthzﬁﬁ %%Mﬁ?
FRARR MBREERBERERERE
1% T & 1A A8 2 & #8 uh (www.hzlaohenghe.
com)&ﬂﬁi“ﬁfriﬂiﬁ o #h ElJ/L .ﬁﬂx%ﬁ%
EEREAERNEG FRERZERE
(ﬁmﬁkﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁAﬁﬁA

%X%

REAY EARNREFEREAFEL
PRARABBRBRA(RERMNERR

ARRRERE)THZ W —R2XZ
FRR ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%% HARBEWE
BHE@MER BEXREESEAHBRE
AARE  NEREABERMERNEM
EBRG REARERRBAEREN
EARRT - WEEERZREFR21A
AARBEARZEH MRFEXRHDAL
AURAZETABTEREH  BARA
AEERFERNMALREEEREA
MZEdmal RNmAAERX -

ARRREREEREAZER
RNEIEE Dy v A5

g
Tk
W

ZENBEBRAR —Z-HFFR



52

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXBIBHRS (B

(L)

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders and potential investors are welcome to communicate with
the Company by email: xingzheng@hzlaohenghe.com. Shareholders
may also put forward their written enquiries or requisitions to the Board
at Balidian Town, Food and Industrial Park, Wuxing District, Huzhou
City, PRC (Attention: the Board of Directors).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor relations play
a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value, enhancing the corporate
transparency as well as establishing market confidence. The Company
discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus
of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as
well as the public to make rational and informed decisions. Updated
key information and business development of the Group are also
available on the Company’s website to enable Shareholders and
investors to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through general meetings which
provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board. Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will
be available at the AGMs of the Company to address Shareholders’
queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure effective
Shareholders’ communication and transparency.
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There has been no change in the Articles since the Listing Date. An up
to date version of the Articles is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The 2014 AGM was an important occasion where the Board and the
Shareholders could communicate directly with each other. The
chairmen of the Board, the directors and the external auditor, Ernst &
Young, were present at the 2014 AGM to communicate with the
Shareholders. The 2014 AGM circular distributed to all Shareholders
before the 2014 AGM contained information regarding the proposed
resolutions.

In addition, the Company has announced its annual and interim results
in a timely manner in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The Company will strive to strengthen investor relationships and
maintain transparency of the operating strategies, financial performance
and development prospects of the Company.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 December 2012
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding company, and
its subsidiaries established in the PRC are primarily engaged in the
manufacturing of cooking wine and other condiment products in China under
the “Lao Heng He” ( [18#1 ] ) brand.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown under
Note 17 to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and
Notes 6 and 7 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out on pages 71 to 72 of this annual report.

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
RMB10.0 cents per ordinary Share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Subject to the approval of the Proposed
Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the 2015 AGM to be held on 29 May
2015, it is expected and, if approved, that the Proposed Final Dividend will be
payable on or before 3 July 2015 to the Shareholders whose names are listed
on the register of members of the Company on 12 June 2015.
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EFBIRE ()

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

(A)

(B)

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and Vote
at the 2015 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27 May
2015 to 29 May 2015 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM, all
Share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant Share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
26 May 2015.

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 10 June
2015 to 12 June 2015, (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Proposed
Final Dividend, all completed Share transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant Share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 June 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements in this annual
report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws
of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB695.8 million of which RMB51.9 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note 24 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would give rise to

disclosure obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2014.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during 2014.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian
Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Bihong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang
Mr. Ma Chaosong
Mr. Lei Jiasu

Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles and the wishes of the Directors, Mr.
Chen Weizhong, Mr. Shen Zhenchang and Mr. Ma Chaosong will retire from
office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming 2015 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company’s circular to be despatched to Shareholders will contain
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EFBIRE ()

& = +

i

IR/

all

BE -
M 38 3

ARRARHEEMMBARN T - MOFILHE
BE HEXBEQARAZEMLETES -

==

BHE_Z-—HWNF+_A=Z=+T—BLEFEKE
ERFREAPEEZEFTHINMOT -

HITES
BRAT S A ()
B
THSE
FUITES
RS

BYFHITES

LIRS SEE
BEMEE

RBANZEXRESTZER RALLE
AEREREREAREEBRERE T -5
FRRBFAS LHERTESTBRYE R
ENAERALRZBEEL-

it

ARBHERETETRRNE KD B REBEE
EETEENFG -

BAUFITESEZHILM

EXEeRBERBUNFNTESRELTARY
FEBGREBUMEL I FEERE LR
RERBEVFNTESHBBELAL -

ZENBEBRAR —Z-HFFR



58

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
=58RS (B

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
as at the date of this annual report are set out in the section headed “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 20 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors (including those Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM) has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable, within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 16.1 and 16.2 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2014.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2 and 15.3 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management members of the
Group are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to the Company’s Directors in aggregate
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 were approximately
RMB126,000 and RMB1,034,000, respectively.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, retirement benefit
scheme contribution) paid to our Group’s five highest paid individuals in
aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 were
approximately RMB494,000 and RMB1,187,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no emoluments were paid by our
Group to any director of the Company or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 9 and Note 10 of the financial
statements in this annual report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2014, by our Group to or on behalf
of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors nor the controlling Shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or was likely compete with, either
directly or indirectly, the business of the Group.
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On 8 January 2014, Mr. Chen Weizhong and Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited (the “Covenanters”), and the Company (for itself and as trustee for
each of its subsidiaries) entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-
competition Deed”), pursuant to which each of the Covenanters has
irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition undertakings
to the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries). Details
of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders — Non-competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

The Covenanters declared that they have complied with the Non-competition
Deed. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted such review
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and also reviewed the relevant
undertakings and are satisfied that the Non-competition Deed has been fully
complied.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in existence
as at the end of the year or at any time during 2014.

LOAN OR GUARANTEE FOR LOAN
GRANTED TO THE DIRECTORS

During 2014, the Group had not made any loan or provided any guarantee for
any loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its
ultimate controlling Shareholders or their respective connected persons.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2014
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Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares capital

EARRH

ERITRA

Name of Director EEHS BH EEuE HERDPEE BHUED
Mr. Chen Weizhong PR 1 AR ST A interest in a controlled corporation 278,169,750 53.62%

A BA B s

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31
December 2014, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
has any interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company and or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which each of them has
taken or deemed to have taken under the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which will be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 or the period following
31 December 2014 up to the date of this annual report, was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their respective associates
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the Directors and
chief executive, or their spouse and children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during such period.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as are known to the Board, the following
parties were recorded in the register, kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed
to be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of BE-Z—NEF+=-A=+—HR
the Company as at 31 December 2014 AKPAROREERD TR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Nature of interests Shares held issued Share capital”
EARDTE
®E BRITRAE

Name ®A EEME ROEAE R Al

Mr. Chen Weizhong BT R EE Interest in a controlled corporation 278,169,750 53.62%

REHEERER
Ms. Ho Ping Tanya ]+ Interest in a controlled corporation 96,830,250 18.67%
TIEGEE R
Ms. Xing Liyu"! WA ELZLEY Interest of spouse 278,169,750 53.62%
[ g
Mr. Wong Kin San® Wong Kin San % 4% Interest of spouse 96,830,250 18.67%
e 18 7 =1
Key Shine Global Key Shine Global Beneficial owner
Holdings Limited® Holdings Limited® ERBEAA 278,169,750 53.62%
Foremost Star Foremost Star Beneficial owner
Holdings Limited® Holdings Limited ERBEAA 96,830,250 18.67%
Power Success Global Power Success Global Person having a security interest
Investments Limited® Investments Limited”  # & RO REBELZENA LT 100,000,000° 19.28%
Chan ChiHung Chan Chi Hung Interest in a controlled corporation
REHEEER 100,000,000 19.28%
Beneficial owner
EnEEA 2,243,500 0.43%

Notes M &

(1) Ms. Xing Liyu is the spouse of Mr. Chen Weizhong. Under the SFO, Ms. Xing (1) Al E X L+ ARE B %L EE’\JEE@f BRIREFH
Liyu is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chen BB ARG - BRI F A2 £ % 4R B PR 5K A AR
is interested. HAERNHHEHERRKRNE B AER -

(20 Mr. Wong Kin San is the spouse of Ms. Ho Ping Tanya. Under the SFO, Mr.  (2) ~ Wong Kin San 5t £ %3 fa] *F 22 - &9 Fic 45 - 1R IR 58
Wong Kin San is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in 7 K Hié‘ &) - Wong Kin San % 4 17 48 /& 7% (7]
which Ms. Ho Ping Tanya is interested in. FR LA RS A AR R A 0%

(3)  The entire issued share capital of Key Shine Global Holdings Limited is legally — (3) Key Shine Global Holdmgs Limited #9 &= & 2 1T
and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Weizhong. BRABBREERTEGEZERMESR -

4) The entire issued share capital of Foremost Star Holdings Limited is legally and @)

beneficially owned by Ms. Ho Ping Tanya.

The entire issued share capital of Power Success Global Investment is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Chi Hung.

The Company issued 100,000,000 warrants to Power Success Global
Investments Limited on 2 September 2014, each warrant conferring Power
Success Global Investments Limited the rights to subscribe for one share at a
subscription price of HK$8.00 per Share, subject to adjustment, during a period
of 12 months commencing from 2 September 2014. As at the date of this annual
report, no warrants have been exercised.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 518,750,000 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2014.

Foremost Star Holdlngs Limited 8 2 & B2 8 17 &
KAMFELZLTE Ao

Power Success Global Investment 2 % £ B 8 17
& 7K 83 Chan ChiHung st £ & /= B &= #E A ©

RZ-ZZF—M&EAR[ = H KD A H[Power
Success Global Investments L|m|ted %" TT
100,000,00017 R X HE & - F 10 B R EE

¥ Power Success Global Investments lelted $E
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 21.7% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 71.3% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 21.2% of the Group’s total purchases. The Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 66.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers
or the Group’s five largest customers.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 329 full-time
employees, as compared to 202 employees as at 31 December 2013. The
Group enters into employment contracts with its employees to cover matters
such as position, term of employment, wage, employee benefits and liabilities
for breaches and grounds for termination. Remuneration of the Group’s
employees includes basic salaries, allowances, bonus and other employee
benefits and are determined with reference to their experience, qualifications,
competence and general market conditions.

The emoluments payable to the Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service agreements as
approved by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. No Director should determine his or her own
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid

individual in the Group are set out in Notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (“MPF
Schemes”) registered under the Mandatory Provident Scheme Fund
Ordinance. The contributions represent contributions payable to the MPF
Schemes by the Company in accordance with government regulations.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC government. The
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to the retirement benefits
schemes based on a certain percentage of their payroll to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to these retirement benefits
schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes.

Contributions paid or payable for these retirement benefits schemes for the
year of 2014 are RMB1.7 milion (2013: RMB1.1 million). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group in
future years.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, our Group has not entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should
be disclosed pursuant to the requirements of chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
stated in Note 32 to the financial statements in this annual report, no contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2014.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014, which did not constitute connected transactions under
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 32 of the financial
statements in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company places high value on its corporate governance practice and the
Board firmly believes that a good corporate governance practice can improve
accountability and transparency for the benefit of the Shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has adopted the Governance Code as its own code to govern
its corporate governance procedures. The Board also reviews and monitors
the practices of the Company from time to time to maintain and improve a
high standard of corporate practice practices.

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 53 of
this annual report, the Company has complied with the Governance Code in
the year ended 31 December 2014. Information on the corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 32 to 53 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules.

WARRANTS

On 2 September 2014 (the “Issue Date”), the Company successfully issued
100,000,000 warrants to an independent third party investor Power Success
Global Investments Limited (the “Subscriber”) at the issue price of HK$0.10
per warrant, each warrant conferring the rights to the Subscriber to subscribe
for one share at a subscription price of HK$8.00 per share, subject to
adjustment, during a period of 12 months commencing from the Issue Date.
As at the date of this annual report, no warrants have been exercised.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING B RERAR

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the A i B El - JHRBE LT =M L o &K
Listing Date. Net proceeds from the global offering were approximately B # M & Mk AMEE X% @ 2IREEHEHIE
RMB769.4 milion (equivalent to approximately HK$968.7 milion), after  FFL A ARE769.48 &7t (18 E M £9968.7
deducting the underwriting commission and relevant expenses. As at 31 HBH&BL) KR _ZE—NF+-_F=+—H"
December 2014, the unused proceeds were deposited in licensed banks i # K 8 69 FT 1S S IBF AR & 78 & 1 B #5 12

Hong Kong and China. AT o

Net proceeds Utilised amount Unutilised amount

Percentage from the (as at (as at

of total Company’s 31 December 31 December

amount IPO 2014) 2014)

Purpose Ar YNGIR=D/ NN | EEBAEEE MABASE
hBEeHE REMSNE (R=ZF—DF (R=ZF—M0F

Aot 8 +t=-A=+—-RH) +=ZHA=+-—H)

RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBBET ARBBEET ARBEBETT

Purchase of rice towards BEEEZON

production of base wine KoK 50% 384.7 384.7 0
Expansion of production facilities ## 2 ¥ & &

for our cooking wine products 4 E 5% i 25% 192.4 192.4 0
Repayment of loans BRERER 10% 77.0 77.0 0
Continued expansion of our FE R OR CH A

distribution network 5% 38.5 23.0 15.5
Working capital and other BEBEE G N

general corporate purposes EM—MIEERSE 10% 76.8 32.9 43.9
Total P 769.4 710.0 59.4

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD & HI%& =18

There are no material subsequent events undertaken by the Company or by AR R K AEBR T —WF+=-F=+—
the Group after 31 December 2014. HigfmErTEmENEESEIE-
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AUDITORS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2014, it was
approved that Ernst & Young were re-appointed as the international and PRC
auditors of the Company respectively for the year 2014, and the Board was
authorised to determine and approve their remunerations.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Weizhong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

s
EY=x

Independent auditors’ report
To the shareholders of Honworld Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Honworld Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 71 to 144, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

18 T 1% B b ¥R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

¥ O % BLbh ¥R & (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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CONSOL

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE

2014
—E-NF
Notes RMB’000
B 5 ART T
REVENUE A 6 668,426
Cost of sales $HE A (281,928)
Gross profit E F 386,498
Other income and gains H A A Rz 6 5,877
Selling and distribution expenses HE MRS (40,338)
Administrative expenses THEX (81,444)
Other expenses HaHx (1,512)
Finance costs A& P A 8 (22,858)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A0 F 8 7 246,223
Income tax expense Frigfim < 11 (34,620)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO AAFEBEZEEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FE1E RIE
THE COMPANY 211,603
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARAEBEERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEBRAER
EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic and diluted ERKEE RMB41.8 cents

ARY41.85

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the

financial statements.

1834 5% -

RoBR%
T —MMFE+=—A=+—HIFE

S

2013

RMB’000
ARBT T

530,433
(217,364)

313,069
11,519
(25,679)
(74,094)
(17)
(17,646)
207,152
(32,945)

174,207

RMB46.5 cents
AR 4659

BERNAFERS ZFBRMBEHRRME

ZENBEARAR —ZFT-NFFR
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ar i NE+=—A=+—HILtFE
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EAREBEREFBA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FE 4 R
THE COMPANY
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H2mBA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified REBHEEFHIEZTERN
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: =N N
Exchange differences on translation of HBRE H Bt DA INE TS
financial statements of operations S mERMEL =%
outside Mainland China
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEKRA
FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREZEBALE

FOR THE YEAR

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014

2014
—EF-IF
RMB’000
ARBTR

211,603

222,133

2013

RMB’000
ARBT T

174,207

174,216



2014

—E-NF
Notes RMB’000
Bt 5% ARBTR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE KK ﬁ 15 501,493
Prepaid land lease payments A T HAER 16 27,196
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 414
Prepayments for items of property, Y- WBERZEIEE
plant and equipment 2B HIE 1,207
Time deposits FEHER 21 1,820
Deferred tax assets RIERIHE E 25 327
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 532,457
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories TE 18 830,488
Trade receivables TEIWRE 5 7T 19 187,900
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables & {+ 3 18 - hz% K
H th & W 3R IE 20 167,155
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 21 218,466
Total current assets MEEERE 1,404,009
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables ERE S 3T 22 175,608
Other payables and accruals H & 1~ 3K IE &Fg FTIEE 23 58,344
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings # SERITR E ﬁt 1% ?K 24 308,760
Due to the ultimate holding company FE B AR IR I 32(a) -
Tax payable FE# IR 16,915
Total current liabilities REBBERRE 559,627
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERR 844,382
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERRDEME

CURRENT LIABILITIES

1,376,839

ZEMBEARAA

2013
=%
RMB’000
AREF T

178,966
23,244
407

1,852
20

204,489

326,652
88,939

64,578
44,011

524,180

105,891
50,460
233,000
461
28,918

418,730

105,450

309,939

“E-NFEFR
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ENT O
DN (CQO )
—A=+—H
Notes
B 5
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 24
Other long term liabilities HiRHAE 26
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 25
Total non-current liabilities RBAEESE
Net assets BEFE
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to ordinary equity holders 7R A & LB iEZSHH A
of the Company JEAG TE %
Issued capital BETRA 27
Reserves EE 28
Proposed final dividend BEEBAREKE 13

Total equity

Chen Weizhong
R &7 58
Director

EF

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014

2014
—EF-IF
RMB’000
ARBTR

1,376,839

109,000
4,684
8,751

122,435

1,254,404

1,584
1,200,945
51,875

1,254,404

Sheng Mingjian
R
Director

EF

2013

RMB’000
ARBT T

309,939

4,862
8,751

13,613

296,326

31
253,239
43,056

296,326



Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company

ARAERERHBARNE
Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued Merger Capital surplus  fluctuation Retained final
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend  Total equity
B#f ELi EX EE ERRY RE fet Bxn
B #E EE  BHER f# FE  BRRE nE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTTE ARBTR ARBTR ARSTR ARRTT ARETR

ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—H—H 31 10,000 7,003 6,612 — 109,464 — 133,110
Profit for the year FERFE - - - - — 174,207 - 174,207
Other comprehensive income EREMEEYRA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on 5 B 3 A
translation of financial EBMUBREN
statements of operations EXER
outside Mainland China - - - - 9 - - 9
Total comprehensive income FRNEEHANERE
for the year — — — — 9 174,207 — 174,216
Acquisition of equity interest 16] 122 AR B BR B
in a subsidiary from — B A A&
controlling shareholders RAER - (11,000) - - - - - (11,000)
Proposed final 2013 dividend BE-_T-ZEHARE - - - - - (43,056) 43,056 -
Transfer from retained profits BERBFBER - - - 750 - (750) - —
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F
+-A=+—H 31 (1,000) 7,003 7,362 9 239,865 43,056 296,326
ZEMBESRAR —ZT—NFFR
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CONSOLIDA ATEMENT C
ES QUITY (CONTINUED)
SOERENE G
r d 31 Dece HE—T—NF+—_A=+—HILtFE
Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
ARAREEEEREAES
Statutory Exchange Proposed
Issued Share Merger Capital surplus ~ Warrant fluctuation  Retained final
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend Total equity
BEf EE  ARER EX [
BR&  ROBE RHREE BXEE BEBEE #E KBREE RENE HRARE HERLE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTT ARETR ARBTR ARWMTR ARETRT AR®TR
At 1 January 2014 RZT-m&E
—A—R (1,000) 7,003 7,362 9 239,865 296,326
Profit for the year FRFE - - - 211,603 211,603
Other comprehensive FREMPEYRA
income for the year:
Exchange differenceson B E R EI R,
translation of financial IASN S 5 1 75
statements of operations ~ HEAIE i,
outside Mainland China 8

Total comprehensive income & N4 I A £ 5

for the year

Final 2013 dividend declared B &)E - F—=4

BRBRE = =
Issue of shares (note 27) ¢ 1TMR {7 (M 3r27) 1,553 806,694
Share issue expense RIDETRY (37,205)
Proposed final 2014 dividend 33 — Z— 14

HRRE (51,875)
Issue of warrants RIREREIT =

Transfer from retained profits & # Z {3 & 715

R-E-MF
+-A=t+-8

At 31 December 2014

1,584 717,614*

*

statement of financial position.
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB1,200,945,000 (2013: RMB253,239,000) in the consolidated

10,530 211,603

(2,432)

(1,000 7003  9794* 7,95  10539*  449,036*
r BRSHERFBRERS

222,133

(43,056)

(43,056)
808,247
(37,205)

51,875

51,875 1,254,404

81 35K 0 R R Y

4R A A R #1,200,945,0007F (— &F —

=4 AR¥253,239,0007T) °



CONSOL

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE

2014
—E-OF
Notes RMB’000
B & AR¥T T
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHINRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 5 B F1 08 246,223
Adjustments for: BTN SIBAE -
Finance costs B & AR 8 22,858
Listing expenses EmX 2,714
Interest income AMEMA 6 (1,310)
Depreciation e 7 12,707
Recognition of prepaid land MREMN T HEERIE
lease payments 7 597
283,789
Increase in inventories FEEm (503,836)
Increase in trade receivables JEUL B 5 R IEE N (98,961)
Increase in prepayments, deposits ERFIE ek
and other receivables HAith FE HﬂZ X IE 1 N (107,663)
Increase in trade payables FEfT & 5 FRIEE I 69,717
Decrease in other payables and accruals HAth F§ H I N EEHIE B (21,227)
Decrease in other long term liabilities Hi REBAERD (178)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  E4 B, (AR KEHRE (378,359)
Interest received 2 F E 1,310
PRC tax paid B A B‘é A (46,950)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KRB AR)EEFEEHN
operating activities FHERE (423,999)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETEHNBELSRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, WEDE BMELXEEE
plant and equipment 15 (335,234)
Additions to other intangible assets Htnfmp & EL M ]

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
for items of property, plant
and equipment

Prepaid land lease payment

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals

Decrease in an amount due from a director

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Increase in time deposits

Acquisition of a subsidiary from
controlling shareholders

ME - BEMREEAE
2 R A, (45 00)

645
T LB ERIE (4,650)
Hib et gErEstER

o CR ) 33,282
JER—ZEBERERD -
FENKIE B2 R

H e Uy 2 E R -
TF 23 TE B A0 (1,800)

I 22 i il 5RO B — S /B8 8 )

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

e/ (BR)EEZHH
FRERE (307,764)

L DREREBE

- A=+—RIFE
\

2013
—E—=F
RMB’000
ARBETT

207,152

17,646
18,601

(49)
9,631

546

253,527
(212,054)
(25,925)

(32,241)
57,787
(251)
(191)

40,652

49
(36,412)

4,289

(57,128)
(407)

(1,748)

(1,190)
23

100,398

(11,000)

28,948

ZENBEARAR —ZFT-NFFR
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2014

—F-MmF
Notes RMB’000
Hf 5 AR® T

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Proceeds from placement of warrants
New interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Increase in other payables and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in a balance due
to the ultimate holding company

METDHNRERE

BATRAD PRS0 IR
P17 817 5 X2

Fo & R E PT 1S 3R
FTIGET BARTT R E A B 5K

EES BRIT REAMMERK
ERE
B E

H A & A RR e B AT B R B AN
FEf SR AR AR IR A R A £R
2 OR )

808,247
(38,903)
7,959

764,180

(579,420)
(43,056)
8 (22,858)

(461)

Net cash flows from financing activities

KEREZHNHFRERE

895,688

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERREESEWEMTEE

163,925

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRENBLEEY
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, EREH) 2
net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREGRBSEEY

AT END OF YEAR

21 218,466

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014

2013
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARBETT

391,760

(359,760)

(17,6406)
11,000

461

8,634

41,771

2,231

44,011
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TATEMENT OF FINA ON
Il #5 IR IR &

31 December 2014 —F—F+—A=+—H
\ \

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET R ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARIZEKE 17 -
Total non-current assets ENBEELE -
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERHRIE ek
other receivables H fth E U FRIE 1,455 -
Due from a subsidiary JiE Uk — P B JBB & B 3R IB 17 699,757 461
Cash and cash equivalents RehAEEEY 7,076 30
Total current assets MBEEME 708,288 491
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b fE A FRIB K FEET 1R B —
Due to a subsidiary JET — I B A R 3k IA 17 20,951
Due to the ultimate holding company JEN SRR A RIFRIE 461
Total current liabilities MEBAEESE 21,412
Net assets BEFH 708,240 (20,921)
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIR A 27 1,584 31
Reserves fE G 28 654,781 (64,008)
Proposed final dividend BEARKE 13 51,875 43,056
Total equity T 425 708,240 (20,921)
Chen Weizhong Sheng Mingjian
B & 8 B
Director Director
- 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I} %55 ¥ % Bid 5k

31 December 2014 = ZE—FE+_-_A=+—H
T

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. AAlEH

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 December AKANRMN—_ZE——F+ - ANBRIER
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the EHREEPFE2E(RABEY(—NIN—
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) FE=ZFEM - KR e REFD ERSE
of the Cayman lIslands. The Company’s registered office address is B ABEREER AR > AR A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1- 5 it % = b 5k & Cricket Square, Hutchins
1111, Cayman Islands. Drive, P.O . Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-

1111, Cayman Islands °

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the ARBR—BEREERAR - FR K
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) were RAIREWBAR (GBI AEE]) X2
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of condiment products RAPEAREMBE(HBEDKEIZE
under the brand name of “Lao Heng He” in the People’s Republic of MIEAR DR E R E T -

China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate EERE ARAER AR M & KRR
holding company of the Company is Key Shine Global Holdings NIV EBELRE (| REBEK X B
Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). & 1) 5 fift 5 32 89 Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited
On 16 January 2014, the Company issued the prospectus and R-ZE—WME—A+H K7 T
launched a public offering of 125,000,000 shares at an offer price of HRER TIKEEBEFRKRMT7.158
HK$7.15 per share and the capitalisation of 365,000,000 shares (the JC A B E & 125,000,000 0% B 19 & # 17
“Capitalisation Issue”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock 365,000,0000% A% 10 & & 1k ([ & & (b 3
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on 28 January 2014 (the T KRBV —_ZE—NUFE— A=
“Listing”). TNREEEBERZHMAR R A ([H

R Em (L™ -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. MEEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with ZEB R IERR TR ¥ B R Bt 75 3R &5 #E B
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise (TEEREBT 78R & 28 |) 45 & - R Bt 7
all International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting LHEBpERR et LB LT ESE B
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International AR EBRBM SR E LR B e
Accounting Standards Board. These financial statements also comply Bl ((ERaetEl )RR - 250K
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong RMERNMEEREE N TIGD AR EET
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial BRENERABRERT MABBKEE
statements, which for this financial year and the comparative period KA B EBAB N ABE A N TIED(F
continue to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. WE) WREFEATIEH (F622F)
32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 P RITFET6ETIEIEX AN B EIE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and [BRENEFINBEERRE TR
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that TSP HBRRTIIBIEFE L KKAEN
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under the EBEMK - B R ERABNIBERI  %FE
historical cost convention. These financial statements are presented in B RERIUAAREDNSEH  MERFES
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand B ERE BN TAL-

except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

i} i h 2 B 5t (5%)

31 December 2014 — T —ME+ - A =+—H

RBLE %

mEE%E

HEMBRREBRAKERBE_T—
ME+ A=+ B IEFENTBR
e NN NIRRT B kR <8 RNYNE]
HRANRESHER BN RER
B K BARRET B ANEERGES
BBEE EEZAREGHERKLZAR
IE#ERE AR -

mMEBEREMEME2ERAEE RN
SESRAREBEA - AEAEERKER
ARXSNMESERNEERAE #
@A HAXERERENES AR
A BUH 8 -

HEEERBRBERATHERA &
BT =B EARPE -—BRZIE
HRE L AEBREFFIHERLY
REHREREGE WEBARHEE
REnEE (W EAREEHE) g
LSk -

il A B2 1) Ok 2= 40 P BB % R e FE A - B
BRIEROZMBRARNEE(RRE®
B)RBE (EMAFEEREENKRE
BRNERNCENRFEN Z8H
EERONIZWKENRFE  (WFRED
R E B 2 F 18 (i) 18 28 7 () B it
EENERAER SRR EMEE K
A RIHE B B 7S 52 (B B 15 2B 0 1R PR fim AR &2
BoERLERBEEXREMTZME
REESHFOBEERHRFRZENE (0
EE) e

ZENBEBRAR —Z-HFFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Wi 5 ¥h 2 B ot (/&)

31 December 2014 —Z—MFE+—-HA=+—H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 31 €y HERIEEC>ET

AND DISCLOSURES

AEBEERRANFENM B RERSA
THRERTER R R -

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new
interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities PR TSRS REEE
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 ERE1055
(Revised) eI RS
RERE125H K
HE e ER
275 (BT &)
Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial BRe st A Al THEENTHEE
Liabilities £32% (BFIAK) /98 1518 85
Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation et R PTHETRAZEERM
of Hedge Accounting 3955 (1EF] &) G AR E
IFRIC 21 Levies BB B s #HE
RBEZEGE2R
Amendments to IFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’ BB S R A BEKHZEE
included in Annual F2H(EFTAR)
Improvements MAZE—FFZE
2010-2012 Cycle T —FEHZ
FREHE
Amendments to IFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent Consideration R B 75 R 5 X B EEA PR
included in Annual in a Business Combination’ EXLACHEE REZ &5 EE
Improvements MA—ZT—ZFFF
2010-2012 Cycle —E——FHH
FEHE
Amendments to IFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and Payables R B 7% 3R 45 £ B A7 HEE UG TG JE 1T 2B
included in Annual F£135% (BFIAK)
Improvements MAZF—FFZF
2010-2012 Cycle ZE-ZFARZ
F[E Ui
Amendments to IFRS 1 Meaning of Effective IFRSs = B 765 4 45 £ B B R BB B 7 R
included in Annual FURUERIRNVAAN  ERIZHZE
Improvements —FE——FF
2011-2013 Cycle —E-ZFRHA
FRENE

! Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the revised standards and new interpretation has had

no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 December 2014 — & —

I} 75 ¥R % B 51
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3.2 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28
(Revised)
Amendments to IFRS 11
IFRS 14
IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS12 and IAS 28
(Revised)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation”

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Discourse Initiative®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Amendments to a number of IFRSs’

Amendments to a number of IFRSs’

Amendments to a number of IFRSs’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

applicable to the Group
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014 —Z—MFE+—-HA=+—H

3.2 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group
considers that these new and revised IFRSs may result in changes in
accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant impact on the

Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) wil
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2015. The Group is in the process of making assessment of the impact

of these changes.

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),

current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014

directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FemEERE®
An assessment is made as at the end of each reporting period as to REREHKR OCURRETREBERLZ
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment BIFERH R EEBIE A L NMEAE 3 7] 82
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication WAOELRT G -HFE i )€
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised (et Bl £ 58 2R ERNEE R
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there EEE(EE2KRINERRINETZEE
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable AIWE e ENGHIEEEE B
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying O L eBEISBAMNABTFEL
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ B ZEEERABBEEBEERBRLTRE
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in EETMERAEGIKRETMAITE HH) -
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the ZEREEEEONG AELHENER
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises. Ko
Related parties 2l
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: INTALTHERGBEREEFHE:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family @ MWAULRTAIHZALREKEZLO
and that person: BREATLT:
() has control or joint control over the Group; () 2 ) o HL A 1 I AN SR [
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy $HAXAEBBEEAFEN =
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the iy ABAFEFIAE NI
Group or of a parent of the Group; TEEEERE
or 3
(o)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions by ZATAFETIEMKEHH
applies: TEe

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

=

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity iy ERBAEZ ERE(HZ—ETE
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other MEAT - WEAFXREFR
entity); MEAR) SRR EE

%

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same iy ZEBHEASEEARA —F=

third party; TREEDRE:

86 Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued) B S (@)
(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy BERR—RE-FEBNE
entity is an associate of the third entity; Bh¥E ME—EBRAZE
ZHERBNEE AT
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit V) ZEBAAEENEAEME
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the ﬁ ENEZHES T 2R
Group; SEBERRE R A B
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person V) ZEEHE@E )IE BT 51 A 2= 42
identified in (a); and o FLRIAE I
(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (i) @NEMIALTHZERE
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of BERKTE j] AL E (5K
the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ZEBNERAADNEIEEE
B8 -
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME BERZXEBURITE
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are BREZRIRIN VE BELRENRE

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

88

ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over

ME BERREBEARTE @

FEDRDE BERRESEB NG
ﬁTﬁ%i@ME@iW%E&$§E

its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose FepBES TN B ERSNEE
are as follows: ERIPF -

Buildings 5% BF 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms HEYWEEE WRHEYFERAE
Machinery and equipment* 5% to 20% R NRE 5% %2 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 33'/5% RMREE 20% % 331/3%
Motor vehicles 20% pa:h 20%
* Included in the machinery and equipment are earthen jars, for which the * WELBERIERE  HEtaFERE

estimated useful lives are 20 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to seven
years, commencing from the date when the products are put into
commercial production.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

90

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in the non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RENHEMESREE @)
Subsequent measurement HEHTE
Loans and receivables B EY A

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

92

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@
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ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and other
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and other borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, an
amount due to the ultimate holding company and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management. FTE— AT Z2R/RITES °
For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash MBI RERMs B2 RBESEEY
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term BREYERS AR FHELERTHES

deposits which are not restricted as to use.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@
ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions B’

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or HWRBFEEMERANEB BEAEELT
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable SHEFET BBBRKENERETE
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the BMELMERERRL MEMBEELH
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount FBREM Al SEfhEt c RUZERL LR B -

of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a HMITEEE N U ERABEZ2HEA
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the FEHBRBETEBMETERN IR RE
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. BARZEHEBE WEWEZRERKEEEM
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the BRrhn - BlszzEEERiEsRkyE
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or [N

loss.

Income tax Fr 58

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to FEFRBEEHMELEERE - F X
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or RIEFUIIER BB Z2FAEHNIES
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. UHNER IR Em2EURISHEER

REZ PR o

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are EH LR AR EBEEENARBIATE
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the HEHMEEERRSINEHRERE S
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been Mt E DERBEREHA RS BMH K
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, EELOEBZHRE(EBE) B L
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the NREBREEBREERFTER 22 ER
countries in which the Group operates. & o

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary BRIERBEBNERAGE N HREHX
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of BEMNBEBEZHAERARMEREMS
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting JHEREBACEZBERE=ZZELE
pUrposes. 1o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;
and

(d)  subsidy, when it is received.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Employee retirement benefits

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC, the Company’s
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to contribute to a state-
sponsored retirement plan for all its PRC employees at certain
percentages of the basic salaries predetermined by the local
governments. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire retirement benefit obligations payable to retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual retirement
benefit payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.

The contributions are recognised as expenses when the Company
consumes the economic benefit arising from service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.

Early retirement and retirement benefits

During the fiscal 2005 restructuring, the Group undertook the expense
related to both the retirement and the early retirement schemes for the
medical and social welfare of those early retired and retired employees
as of 30 June 2005. The Group recognised the relevant estimated
liabilities as well as charges to the statement of profit or loss once the
Group undertook the obligations. These benefits are unfunded.

Where these schemes fall due more than 12 months after the date of
the financial statement, they shall be discounted amounts using the
appropriate discount rate, and carried at discounted amount as
liabilities. The discount rate is determined using the vyield rate of
government bonds with similar terms at the date of the financial
statements.
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Actuarial gains or losses include the experience adjustment (the impact ERESNPELRE AR (EEBEERBRK
of difference between previous actuarial assumption and actual results) BE A % 2 Bz =% ?; BYRNEER
and the impact of changes on actuarial assumption. The actuarial gains HEFH o E FEERREARAEE

or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income when incurred
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a subsequent period.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@
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ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

Early retirement and retirement benefits (Continued)

Interest expense is charged to the statement of profit or loss which is
derived from the discount rate determined at the commencement of
the retirement scheme within an accounting period and the early

EBEEKEFR @

RERAKRRAKER 80
MERIRBEMETER

retirement scheme multiplying with the average present value over the B e
entire terms.
Borrowing costs BE KA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an

Yig kA EAKLBRERETAE
REMGRKHEELABREENERRE
HEERAERCERZEEEZKA
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BREER  FLEEERATUER
- FREREGFRARAEBREENH
BER IR E 2R E WA PSR AR
HMEEREZIEERA - FIBEHEMEE
A BREE MBI IER - & &K
AERMNBANREREAESMELN

entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. EH A AHRE R AN o
Dividends B B

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT SSEEFHHEHE@

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the presentation currency of
the financial statements of the Company for the purpose of aligning
with the presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date

S S
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when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on = 2 JEEMIBEESA MWK EIEILRE
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in ZZIBAENAFEESELEOKZINE
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the BREB(AAAFEKIXEEERE

item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss

e WA NIERERNIAR  HRE

is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also ZBNROBREMES KN BRANE
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, R) e

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong subsidiaries are ETEBWNBARNINEEEE B ARK

currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation

il

AN ER - RI|EMKR - ZEER
BENABRBSHRBITNESRRE

3

currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of BARARNTNEREE MEBRRITZ
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated FEMNMEFHERBESEARE- ﬁfr
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The EXEHEERNEMEESKREERRL

resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive EHEHHEERT  HEBINER E¢ :

income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLIC | ES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Tax provision

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates the tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are made accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed periodically to take
into account all the changes in tax legislation and practices.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, EEESTTHE RAT @

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for income tax and
withholding tax that would not be payable on certain undistributed
earnings of the subsidiaries in Mainland China if the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences in
relation to the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China can be controlled and such temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. For those undistributed earnings of
the subsidiaries in Mainland China that are considered to be repatriated
and distributed by way of dividends, the related deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

(@) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant

and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the repair and maintenance of the asset, and legal
or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances. The carrying amounts of the property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment losses of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectibility, the aged analysis of trade
and other receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the estimated net realisable value of the inventories. The
assessment of the provision required involves management’s
judgement and estimates on market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have impact on the carrying
amounts of inventories and the write-down charge/write-back of
inventories in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Early retirement and retirement benefits

The Group has recognised the early retirement and retirement
benefits as a liability. The initial recognition of early retirement and
retirement benefits is measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle early-retired and retired employees.
When the Group determines the best estimate, it takes into
account headcount changes of early-retired and retired
employees, effect on future expenditure arising from inflation of
prices and other factors. When selecting a proper discount rate,
the Group takes into account the average period of future
payment for early retirement and retirement benefits and other
factors. The difference between the actuarial assumptions and
actual results will have an impact on the relevant accounting
estimation. Although management considered that the above
assumptions are reasonable, any changes in assumptions may
affect the amount of provision for early retirement and retirement
benefits. The assumptions that the Group used in measuring the
early retirement and retirement benefits are disclosed in note 26.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &Z 5 &R

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
condiment products. For management purposes, the Group operates
in one business unit and has one reportable operating segment as
follows:

° The food segment manufactures and sells condiment products.

As all of the Group’s revenue is derived from sales of its products to the
customers in the PRC and all of the Group’s identifiable non-current
assets are located in the PRC, no geographical information as required
by IFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from sales to individual customers amounting to 10
percent or more of the Group’s revenue for the reporting period is set
out in the following table:

AEETBERERARRNEERBEESR
HoMEEMS AFBUNE-—XKE
% BEE—EARNZ2/BEntmT :

e RmoMEENMEERKMS -

HRAKEZHRAGRE AR FEH
EFPHEHEER AASE2EATHR
FRBEEAMNTE  RAEBREE
BB REENESREL S A2
AR -

FHREIEEFZEH
TR RS A A (G EE
10% 3% BA = U 2% 19 {81 B & /5 7 2 4 M0 g

m -

2014 2013
—E-—F —E2—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBFTT

144,788 110,091
108,779 70,594
84,470 75,277
74,992 64,760
63,311* 56,483

476,340 377,205

Customer A ZPA
Customer B =FB
Customer C BPC
Customer D ZFD
Customer E BPE
* Revenue from this customer in the relevant reporting period did

not exceed 10 percent of the Group’s revenue.

- REBRESHERBEEERPHBAT
BAAEERAB10% -
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade

discounts.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

Continued)

6. WA Htl AR W&

ONCT:EX Y FoEE T PEEi1 73"
EEBRESTMANEHEQRE
EE -

REBPA -~ AR ARREIHTAT

follows:
2014 2013
—F-WmF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEE® 668,426 530,433
Other income and gains Hfth g A R W3
Subsidy received B s 4 Bh 10,280
Gain from sale of materials MR E IS 717
Interest income F B A 49
Rental income HERKA 440
Others Hith 33
11,519
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

B Bt A A

7 5 1 R 5 A A B TS AR

Costs of inventories sold

Depreciation

Auditors’ remuneration

Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases regarding plant
and machinery

Employee benefit expense

(excluding directors’ remuneration):

— Wages and salaries
— Pension scheme contributions

EHEFRERAR

e

B B
WREN L EERE

REBMERTEEBE &
Heas ) RKE & 50R

EEEMHAX
(TEREEM:) :
—IEE#HE
— Rk EIHR

2014

—E-NF

Notes RMB’000
Bt AR®T T
281,928

15 12,707

1,564

16 597

Research and development costs
Donations

Bt 9T 2 7 3% K AR

B

MR TIEE:

2013
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARBFTT

217,364
9,631
600

546
685

9,798
1,078

10,876

42,841

ZENBEARAR —ZFT-NFFR
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8.

108

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BE A

Interest on bank and other borrowings

$R1T R H b 8 ORI S
wholly repayable within five years =)

ARNAFABRER

BAKADHTIT -
2014 2013
—F-WmF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARBEFT
17,646

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section
161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is
as follows:

RiE EmRARES QA K (FE662
FE)MERNMET8BHRELER RGN E
NEFIGIRBEECEFTR&ERITHA
BZ2FERNMESHT

2014 2013

—E-OF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Fees we —
Other emoluments: Hums :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZAEEDMAE 120

Performance-related bonuses FKIAMEE T —

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T I 3K 6

126

126
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(@

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

9. EERBEETHRARLZ

£ @)

@ BUFHUTES

FRAENBILFATEEZES

mF -

2014
—g-me
RMB’000
ARET R

Mr. Lei Jiaxiao BRBEE
Mr. Ma Chaosong BN L
Mr. Shen Zhenchang Pk =

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil)

2013
—E—=fF
RMB’000
ANREEF T

FABERMENBLIFATE
E2ME(ZTE—Z=ZF: %)

ZENBEARAR —ZFT-NFFR
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EEREBESTHRAE Y

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director
and the chief executive

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

e EHR

e BEWRH
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR

2014 —E-mE

Executive directors: HiTEE
Mr. Sheng Mingjian RAREE
Mr. Wang Chao FTHEE

Non-executive director  FE# 77& F -
Mr. Zhang Bihong Rk A

Chief executive: SEITHEAL -
Mr. Chen Weizhong R R

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014

@
b) HITEE -FHTESR
BEEITHRAER
Performance Pension
related scheme Total
bonuses contributions remuneration
®E BiRE
HEZ A B REE Mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTR AR®BT=R




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REM U N ERAT'ON (Continued)

(o) Executive directors, a non-executive director

i} i h 2 B 5t (5%)

31 December 2014 — T —ME+ - A =+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EEREBESITHRAEZ

€ w

(b) BITES - FkHTEER

and the chief executive (Continued) BEETEBAE @
Salaries,

allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

e EZUR =B Rike
we EMAla  HEEzELa IR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBETT ARETRT ARETR ARBTT ARBTT

2013 —E—=
Executive director HITEER
and chief executive: RETHAS
Mr. Chen Weizhong P& & % 4 - 120 - 6 126
— 120 — 6 126
Notes: P&
(a) During the year 2013, there were no fees or emoluments payable (@) —TE-=ZFERN WEREEFRE

for the service as directors to the other two executive directors and
the non-executive director who were appointed on 17 December
2013.

(b) During the year, there was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

ZEMBEARAA

ENR-_Z—-—=+-"A++H
EZAZEMMERTEER—
ZHPTEEHRSKBS -

FA BMEIVEZERHESTH
ABREFRAERZETAHESH
2HE e

—B-mEEH i
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EBREHEE

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three directors FA AR FEERBE-RER(Z

(2013: three), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 T-=ZF:=F) EPEFBINRLEX

above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2013: two) 359 c R AR IEEFNMIEZ I ITHA

highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive BEvHEGMEB(ZE—Z=ZF: WME) &=
of the Company are as follows: FEEZMeFBROT

2014 2013

—E-NEF —ZE-—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NREYHE 177
Performance related bonuses FKIRMEETEAL -
Pension scheme contributions RIRS B 12
189
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid MeENFUATHENIFESRIEZST
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as BAEBZESHEEAZOT
follows:
2014 2013
—g-mE  —B-=F
Nil to RMB1,000,000 T &= AR ¥1,000,0007C 2
The remuneration of the five highest paid employees for the year 2014 T NFhEEaHEENEEER
included remuneration of two executive directors who were appointed ZE—=F+ZATEREZAZMA
on 17 December 2013. The relevant salaries, allowances and benefits WITES e — T —=FHSZEAR
in kind and pension scheme contributions for their services as EBEZHBE S EFULREDMNE KR
employees for the year 2013 are RMB167,000 and RMB12,000, Ke st Bl Rl A AR ¥167,0007T &
respectively. AR#12,0007T °
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11. INCOME TAX 11. Fr 8

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands, the Group was not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been provided at the rate of 25% (2013: 25%) on
the taxable profits, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading Group for
Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition, Huzhou Laohenghe
Brewery Co., Limited and Huzhou Laohenghe Wine Co., Limited were
granted the “New and Advanced Technology Enterprise” status and
were entitled to the beneficial tax rate of 15% for the three years ending
31 December 2015.

AEBARAEEKE ARG REZE
%f%ﬁ’ﬂ?&%lﬁﬁﬁ&i%%ﬁﬁﬂmﬂﬂ'
REREEGWMEH RERSEES
MRRIMOEIR - NEBBAMME S A
SREH -

EEAEEPBENMELEBTNDERN
SR BERBERABARTEZ 2ER
\i‘fﬁu%ﬂﬁ 25% (= F — =4 : 25%) ¥
JE R FE 1 B o

REZESHEMEERETERETIIER
AR REZHOIE S N EZE
BEBRDAHMEEMBEERRA
AEGISARMERIER LARE
E-T-RAF+-A=+—-RHIE=f@F
EZEXZ15%MEBEREK -

2014 2013
—F-NF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT T

Current — PRC BNEY — e

Charge for the year FAZH 28,600
Deferred IR 4,345
Total tax charge for the year FAMBZ LB 32,945

ZENBEBRAR —Z-HFFR
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11. |NCOME TAX (Continued)

12

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction where most of the
Company’s subsidiaries are located to the tax expense at the effective
tax rate is as follows:

A

Profit before tax R 76 A1

Tax at the statutory tax rate A TEMESFENIE

Lower tax rate enacted by the 75 BR T 98 45 B B AR AR R
local authority
Effect of withholding tax at 10% 3% 7N £ [& &[5 (A 3t

on the distributable profits M8~ R A o R FE 2
of the Group’s subsidiaries 10%T BB 22
in Mainland China

Income not subject to tax BARBKA

Tax incentive on eligible EERAIZHBER
expenditures

Expenses not deductible for tax % # & 1~ 8] F1 8L 89 59 52

Tax charge at the Group’s RAEEERMETED
effective rate %2

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of
RMB9,713,000 (2013: a loss of RMB19,202,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 28).
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11.

Continued)

88w

RAARRA KBS O E R B FERDE
12 8 )X TE B R 5T B /0 R BERT A E
MAEHAXBIZERREGFENRSE
FXEBRMNT

2014 2013
—E-MEF —ZET—=
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
R¥F % AR®EFIT %
246,223 207,152
61,556 51,788 25.0
(26,544) (20,085) 9.8)
- 5,324 2.6
(200) (2,573) (1.2)
(3,044) (1,528) 0.7)
2,852 19 —
32,945 15.9

—E-NFE+_A=Z+—BLFE
MARNREBERSE ABMLEGE FHE
BRERAARAVBEHREEENEIEA
RIEQ713000T (=T —=4: FEE A
R #19,202,0007T) (Mi5E28) °
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. R &
2014 2013
—E-IEF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Proposed final — RMB10 cents ERIRMER — 1H§ -3 %

(2013: 8.3 cents) per ordinary share ARE10D (ZE—=F :83%) 43,056
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of FRNEZHRBREBEEGTAQFRENE
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general [ERRBFREG LRIETAIEE -
meeting.

A 3 3¢
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. X A EBEEEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE1h 3 i & 7
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
2014 2013
—E-IEF —F—=
RMB
AR
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary ARNRERERFTEA 41.8 cents 46.5 cents

equity holders of the Company FEAS =A% & 7 41.8% 46.57
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the ERERNBNNESHENAEIEREA
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the I ﬁ@% mRAEABGEFEANERSF W E
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of B 17 % @ AR N A T 15 £0506,643,836 A%

506,643,836 (2013: 375,000,000) in issue during the year. — % — =4 : 375,000,000/%) °
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EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE G EE S EE T

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. X S EEREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhERERN @

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: BRERBFNBOFAETDER
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®TT

Earnings EZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders RATEBEREAEA
of the Company, used in the basic earnings FEMRFNE  BRESREXRETF
per share calculation tE 174,207
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the ARERERBANFENBEZE_Z—NO
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 used in the basic earnings ERZE-=ZFFT_A=+—HILEE
per share calculation is determined on the assumption that the EETEBRNETSHETERNRSEM
10,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of US$0.0005 each issued ARARRZE—ZF+ = AN B MK
in connection with the incorporation of the Company on 4 December 37 % 17 #710,000,000 % & B% H & 0.0005
2012 and the 365,000,000 shares with a par value of US$0.0005 each ETERRMREABARARARF—
issued in connection through capitalisation of the share premium ME—AZ+T N B LW EORNEE
account arising from the Listing of the Company on 28 January 2014 B8R B9 & AN b T 2 17 89 365,000,000 % & A%
had been in issue since 1 January 2013. HEE00005E TR B —=4—A
—HEEETMEE -
2014 2013
—E-OF —F—=
’000 000
T T &
Weighted average number of BT R INE T E
ordinary shares in issue 375,000
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HREMARITENRERESSRELRR
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 FMEERESERANTZE  BAE @ Rid
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the warrants outstanding had EoEEMEYBE_T—NOFR=
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts =F+-_A=+—"HLFEERIZHE Hﬁ

presented. EARFEEELAE -
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2014 —T—mE+=-A=+—H
N\

SO

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. %% - BME R & &

Machinery
and Furniture Motor Leasehold Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures vehicles improvement in progress Total
BF BERZE BARZE RE HENXEE ERIR st
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARTn AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥Tn

At 31 December 2014 =—Z—F

+t=A=+-8
At 1 January 2014 : R-_Z-NE—HA—H
Cost DN 120,561 43,103 3,971 2,028 192,863
Accumulated ZimE
depreciation (6,295) (6,076) (477) (1,049) (13,897)
Net carrying amount  BR[E /%58 114,266 37,027 3,494 979 178,966

At1January 2014, net  R-E—M4E

of accumulated —A—8"

depreciation MG 2E 114,266 37,027 23,200 178,966
Additions NE 47,826 23,017 248,348 335,234
Depreciation provided R4 E# &

during the year (6,651) (5,013) - (12,707)
Transfers B 138,615 114,825 (253,440) -

At 31 December 2014,  H-E—4E
net of accumulated +-A=+—-8"
depreciation NG 2iE 294,056 169,856 18,108 501,493

At 31 December 2014 RZZT—[4E

+-F=+-8
Cost B AR 307,002 180,945 3,971 2,081 528,097
Accumulated BitinE
depreciation (12,946) (11,089) (832 (1,292) (26,604)
Net carrying amount REFE 294,056 169,856 3,139 789 18,108 501,493
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31 December 2014 —Z—MFE+—-HA=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. %% - BME R & & @)

(Continued)
Machinery and  Furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures vehicles in progress Total
BF BRERSZE RRAREE " FEIR BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTI ARBTR
31 December 2013 —E-=fF
+=ZB=+-—H
At 1 January 2013: R-ZZE—=F—HF—H
Cost [PEN 93,595 36,112 3,971 2,028 29 135,735
Accumulated REE
depreciation (1,461) (2,707) (98) — — (4,266)
Net carrying amount BRE 35 92,134 33,405 3,873 2,028 29 131,469
At 1 January 2013, net RZE—=%F
of accumulated —A—8"
depreciation myRHineE 92,134 33,405 3,873 2,028 29 131,469
Additions NE 26,931 6,991 — - 23,206 57,128
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
during the year (4,834) (3,369) (379) (1,049 — (9,631)
Transfers 2 35 — - — (35) —
At 31 December 2013, RZE—=%F
net of accumulated +=—RA=+—8"
depreciation Nk 2EireE 114,266 37,027 3,494 979 23200 178,966
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=4F
+ZA=+—AH
Cost B AR 120,561 43,108 3,971 2,028 23,200 192,863
Accumulated 2FME
depreciation (6,295) (6,076) (477) (1,049) - (13,897)
Net carrying amount R FE 114,266 37,027 3,494 979 23,200 178,966
At 31 December 2014, a building of the Group with a net carrying RZZE—NE+-_A=+—H K&

amount of approximately RMB20,576,000 (2013: Nil) was pledged to

—REREFELH A AR 20,576,000 7T

secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 24(b)). TR =F B\ 2RBFEAETASE
Iff% 2 AR (M 5E24(0)) ©
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31 December2014 —FE—WF+—-H=+—H
T

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AT L b FHE R E

2014 2013
—E-F —ZET—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—R—HME®E 24,336
Additions during the year RERRE _
Recognised during the year RERER (546)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HMEEE 23,790
Less: Current portion included in prepayments, & * 5T ATEN FIE ~ 22 K
deposits and other receivables H fth 18 ORI O T B #E 53 (546)
Non-current portion EmEE S 23,244
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held under a AELtHURPTEARNML WRERMA
long term lease. RS EI
A leasehold land of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of R-ZE—NME+_B=+—H K&
approximately RMB11,485,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil) —BEREAEY A ARK®11,485,000 T
has been pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note —TE—=F R )HEELHEART
24(0)). AEBIRITERZER (M 5E24(0)) ©
17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B AR ZRE
Company KA T
2014 2013
—E-OF —ET—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Investments in subsidiaries* RHB AR 2 RE* —
* Investments in subsidiaries mainly represented the investment cost in Lao * REBARZRETEHENEEME
Heng He Group Limited of HK$1 (equivalent to approximately RMB1). BEERAFDMNEREKRA1BT(HER

AR -
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31 December 2014 = ZE—FE+_-_A=+—H
T

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continves) 17. RKMiB 2 Rl 2 R E @)

R AT (#)

RZB-—NWE+_A=+—8 st AKX
RARBEEMNEKMBRATREAR
699,757,000 (ZE —=F: AR
461,000C) R —E—=F+ A=+
—HAEHARRTR RS EENESK B R
A FIE A R#20,951,0007T © A EE I -
REBRIBEREE-

Company (Continued)

The amount due from a subsidiary included in the Company’s current
assets as at 31 December 2014 of RMB699,757,000 (2013:
RMB461,000) and the amount due to a subsidiary included in the
Company’s current liabilities as at 31 December 2013 of
RMB20,951,000, are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: WEARFBWT

Place and date of Nominal value of Percentage of equity

120

incorporation/establishment issued/registered attributable to the
Name and place of operations share capital Company Principal activities
T AR SRR B R BRI/ EHEEAAER
L AR R i B R AEE BOk TEEHK
Direct  Indirect
HiE i
Lao Heng He Group Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 — Investment holding
13 December 2012
ZEMEEERRQA B% 1A REZERK
—E-ZHE+ZA+=H
Huzhou Chenshi Tian Niang PRC/Mainland China HK$14,250,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited* 5 February 2013 products
MMBRRRBEXERRE"  FE/ FERMD 14,250,0003% 7T RS
—E—-=-%-AHAH
Huzhou Cheng De Trading PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited* 26 March 2014 products
MK EE HAERAR" B B i N #BEFK R
—ZE-HmE=R=+~H 400,000,0007T
Zhejiang Changxing Sanhetang PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Trading Co., Limited* 14 October 2014 products
MIRE=N=EZEHER B B i ANRE #HEAKR
NCIN —E-mNE+A+THmA 200,000,0007T
Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery PRC/Mainland China RMB11,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited* 6 June 2005 condiment products
MM ZEBNEESRR AR R b AEE HERHE AR m
—ZEZRFERARA 11,000,0007T
Huzhou Laohenghe Wine PRC/Mainland China RMB38,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited* 20 July 2010 condiment products
MMZBREELZERA A" LR it ARE HEREE R m
—E-TF+A=+H 38,000,0007T
- There subsidiaries are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or -

another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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31 December2014 —FE—WF+—-H=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continves)y 17. RHMiB 2 Rl 2 R E @)

Company (Continued) I NNSETRE )

The English names of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in R EAaIFMZAARHB AR Z2E
Mainland China represent the translated names of these companies as XEZWAZEL AP EB2BE B

no English names have been registered. MR SCHE

18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Raw materials R 13,908 7,155
Work in progress ER 782,719 311,053
Finished goods X i 33,861 8,444
830,488 326,652
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount RZZE—NE+ZA=+—H K&
of RMB117,530,000 (2013: RMB70,277,000) were pledged to secure AR EE A A KR %117,530,0007T (=
bank loans granted to the Group, as further detailed in note 24(b) to the T —=4F: AR®70,277,0007L) B 17
financial statements. E AR TASEERITEROER

#E— TR N B S R M T 24(0)

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EWE B RKIE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Trade receivables FEWE 58 187,900 88,939

ZENMEERAT —EB-NEEH 21
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. The
credit period is generally one to three months.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19. EWW B 5 K IE )

AEEREFHNESGERANEERS
REI-FEHBER—Z=Z=@A-

A6 B B0 B i R R (B Y B KRR R AR A
BEEE MBMRNTZERTHSR
BEEEERRS - BRESKARTE

o

i

FEBRBERRBKE S RBREE
BEMER SO T

2014 2013
— k2 —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Within 1 month & B AR
1 to 3 months 1Z31E A

3 to 6 months 3Z6MEA

6 months to 1 year 6MEAZE1E
Over 1 year 1F R E

86,375 47,774
81,517 36,384
16,382 4,357
3,380 402
246 22

187,900 88,939

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the credit terms,
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired, is

i 5l B 48 & R¥ AR 19 R R 2R (B & FE UK
EHFRRERYRNKREINAOT

as follows:

2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Neither past due nor impaired B 4% 780 B 78 AR R (B 167,891 81,549
Less than 3 months past due B HI D PAGME A 16,382 6,947
3 to 6 months 3618 A 3,164 251
6 months to 1 year FERERE:S 229 170
Over 1 year 1FE M 234 22

187,900 88,939
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 190. B IR E 5 I8 )

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to HMABMHENMERENEWRE 5 HIBEE
a number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent ZITREFEHE MENOHITEED
history of default. TRaeEk -

The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a CEHE ERENEIWE 5 N IEEE
number of customers that have a good track record with the Group. ZEREBB BENKERZ R
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no BiF - BEBENFLER E=ERAEEEE
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as BHETWESEANE  BULWEEHTEHE S
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the Al EEWE AKBEARNESESEDY
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold WERBEG AEBTERZSESRESRS
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. FREF RS EREMEEEEEED

i HE o

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 20.FANRE -HEREM
OTHER RECEIVABLES FE U Fx 18

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Prepayments A FRIE 68,005 40,479
Deposits and other receivables e kE A ERFIE 99,150 24,099

167,155 64,578
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial Lt EES e B SR E o Ll A BRET
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which VeMEES RERNBHENTLH 2 ER
there was no recent history of default. FRIE ©
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21, Iﬁ,%é’%iﬁ,ﬁ%@% RE

TIME DEPOSITS HER
2014 2013
—E—NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Cash and bank balances BE RIBITHER 218,466 44,011
Time deposits THEFER 1,820 20
220,286 44,031
Less: W
Non-pledged time deposits with original RESERR/EAZIHN

maturity of over six months when acquired EEWTFEHFR (1,820) (20)
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MBS EED 218,466 44,011
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the REmERKR REENUARBFENSR
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB159,556,000 (2013: & MIR1THE % B A R 159,556,000
RMB43,912,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. —E—=%F: AR%43912,0007T) © A
However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control RETCEBHABKEMER - A
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of IR 5 A B R O E B IR G ) e (45 T -
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EERNESERTE) NEEBERE
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign BELEMNEXEBEHRITHEARE LR
exchange business. B E A B -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank HITRSEBBETFARITERANEFE
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with RZENF R BREUA B - RIT 4% R E B
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. TR FREBRT SRR L2 E

PR AFEERTT o
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22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. EHE B FRIE
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting REHREMNE S FELREEZEAHD
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: REATIT -
2014 2013
—F-NmF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFRT ARBETT

Within 3 months 3@ A AR 102,149 68,090
3 to 6 months 3=61EA 31,924 25,285
Over 6 months 61E A 41,535 12,516

175,608 105,891
Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are normally NREHBENESRBEBIMNE B @ E A
settled on terms of one to three months. The carrying amounts of the R—Z2=Z@ARNEE - ENEZHRENER
trade payables approximate to their fair values. HEEENTERA

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23, %fﬁrﬂ FEHRRIE R EST
I
2014 2013
—F-mOF —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFRT ARETTT

Advances from customers T8 U AR 3K 2,619
Other payables Efh fE A 3kIE 39,149
Accruals fEETIE B 8,692

50,460
All these balances are non-interest-bearing and other payables have an FrBZSHEBIITE R EthERNRIE
average term of three months. TFHERAE=M@A -
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Contin

)

24. 5T RBIT R E AR

Current
Bank borrowings
— secured

Other borrowings
— secured

Non-current
Bank borrowings
— secured

Analysed into:
Bank borrowings
repayable:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth
years, inclusive

Other borrowings
repayable:
Within one year

B8
RITHER

—HER

H A fiE 5%
—HER

e
RITER
—BHEM

AT
EEERTT

B3

R—FR

FEZFR

F=FF
FRERN
(BIEERMTF)

i
pild

\
/A

S
3

o
>
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2014 2013
—B-|mE e
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRA=E B A &=
(%) ZIH AR¥TR (%) ZI 8 ARBTT
2014
5.80-7.20 308,760 6.00-8.53 —ZT—4F 228,000
2014
1920 —Z—M4F 5,000
308,760 233,000
2016-2017
—E-REZE
6.00-6.46 —ZT—+tF 109,000 -
417,760 233,000
308,760 228,000
49,000 -
60,000 -
417,760 228,000
5,000
417,760 233,000
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 24. ;T ERITREME K@
OTHER BORROW'NGS (Continued)
Notes: e -
(@  The Group’s banking facilities amounted to RMB717,000,000 (2013: @@ AEBEBRTBREBFERARE
RMB293,000,000) of which RMB417,760,000 (2013: RMB228,000,000) 717,000,000C( = F — =ZF: AR®
had been utilised. 293,000,0007T) * WEBAEFHAR

417,760,000 (B —=4: AR
228,000,0007T) °

(o) At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were ) RBESHR AEEETEEER TR
pledged to banks and other lenders for securing the bank loans and other TREMEER AR FAKEIRT
borrowings granted to the Group. ERREMERZER-

The carrying values of these assets are: ZEBEZEEMER
2014 2013
—EB-mF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 ARBTR ARBFTT
Property, plant, and equipment ERN L 15 20,576 —
Leasehold land HE T 16 11,485 —
Inventories 7E 18 117,530 70,277
149,591 70,277

All the Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated in RMB. AEEPTARTRAMBEFTIGAARE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings AE - AEBBRTLAEMERNERE

approximate to their fair values. HEHEQFEME -
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25. DEFERRED TAX 25, iF IE B 1E

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are BEERBAGBLREERERNZEH W
as follows: BN
Withholding
Unrealised tax on
profit/(loss)  distributable
on inventories dividends Total
REREFE BB DIK
FE (FE) REZEOHR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T ARBEF T
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F—H—H 979) (8,427) (4,4006)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRRBRERTAS
the statement of profit or loss during (k) 2 EIEFR B
the year (note 11) (FF5E11) 979 (5,324) (4,345)
Gross deferred tax liabilities as at R-IE—=4%F

31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 +-—A=+—8BK
—Z—mFE—-—H—H

ZEERIBAERAE — (8,751) (8,751)
Deferred tax credited to the statement of ~ F R REBFXRETAZ
profit or loss during the year (note 11) EEFIE (MFFE11) 327 - 327
Net deferred tax liabilities as at R-Z—OF
31 December 2014 +=—A=+—H
2B B ABFE 327 (8,751) (8,424)
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25. I & B T2 ()

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
liabilities of RMB42,267,000 (2013: RMB20,532,000) in respect of
temporary differences relating to the unremitted profits of subsidiaries
amounting to RMB382,632,000 (2013: RMB205,323,000), that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

REBPEARAMBEEMRETE B
B A A L Y S R R B R E R IR MR
BEEMEIROBKEABNI0%TEMH -
BEREB_TZENF-A-HBELE
MoBERR-_ZFTLEF+_A=1—
BRzZBN - fMPEAEERIMNIESE
P B B RAHE [ AT LIS R 4D - RIAT BE
FEREMNEARE -BRAKEMS -
ERARERI0% Bt AEBEEAEE
RRPEAMK L ZZERNBERATAR
TENF-A-HBRELZZENMADIK
Z B BB IR o

W-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—H8  BEH
BRAAIAELMEZEREEZEZAAR
382,632,000 (=T —=4F: ARK
205,323,0007T ) * 1 AR AN A 7] 2 5%
EMBARIMKRBIE  M&xSEFBER
AREBRATETSESSIK WMALHE
I 4 Tk 55 Ik Ut S5 4R B B B AT AL E A 2 B
B ERIEERIE 8 & A R 42,267,000
T(ZE—=%: AR®20,532,0007T) °

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of ANARAEREIRMESEFTEHRI
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. mEE

ZENBEBRAR —Z-HFFR
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26. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 26. HthREEE
As at 31 December 2014, the actuarial liabilities existing in relation to R-ZE—NME+=-_A=+—H8B - B@AR
the retirement benefit obligations for employees who retired prior to the TRT AR UGBS RN E B FEEE B R A A
acquisition of Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited by the BERHNEENEREBNEFETRIEREE
controlling shareholders and the early retirement obligations for KEEMNEEEKREEAMEENEEARA
employees who early retired were RMB4,684,000 (2013: BEAARMEL468400T(=ZF —=F:
RMB4,862,000). The benefit obligations arising from the plans were ANR#4.862,0007T) c stEIEEWENE
unfunded. FRAEFES -
()  The movements of the actuarial liabilities recognised in the @ RUBEMRIRRANZEBEERLFE
statement of financial position are as follows: MRNAEEHWT -
2014 2013
—E-IEF —z—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FURRmEE 5,053
Benefits paid =ENEE (191)
As at end of year IS 4,862
(b)  The discount rates and the principal actuarial assumptions for the by LFAETHRBREXIRRFIEHER
above obligations are as follows: B3 UNNE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZE-=
Discount rates: BLIR &K -
Medical benefits R 4% 5%
Survivor pension M & 3.5%-3.8% 4.5%-4.8%
Average annual benefit increase: FRETFHBAEM:
Medical benefits BEEN 0%—4%
Survivor pension M & 15%

130 Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

i} i h 2 B 5t (5%)

31 December2014 —FE—WF+—-H=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B A
Shares % 4
2014 2013
—EF-HmE =F—=
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: VETE ¢

1,000,000,000 (2013: 1,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of US$0.0005 each

1,000,000,000 A%

(ZZ— =4 :1,000,000,000 %)
49 1% 0.0005 2 JT 1) & i A%

500

2014 2013
—E-pmEF —F=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TT

BEITRER
518,750,000 f&

Issued and fully paid:
518,750,000 (2013: 1,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of US$0.0005 each

(ZZ—=4% :1,000,000,000 %)
4 1% 0.0005 2 JT K & 3 A%

The movements in share capital were as follows:

(@) At the date of incorporation of the Company, its authorised share
capital was US$50,000 divided into 100,000,000 shares at a par
value of US$0.0005 each.

(b)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17 December
20183, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from US$50,000 to US$500,000 by the creation of
900,000,000 additional shares of US$0.0005 each, ranking pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

RASBMT :

@ RARRFEMEYZZHE HEZETEK
7N A50,000% 7T+ 2 £100,000,000
% 4 % T 1E.0.0005 E T A9 P& 1D ©

b)) BERZZFT—=F+=ZA++tH
MEK—IEEBAEE  AQAR
& TE B 7N # 15 7% 900,000,000 A&
[i% T 18 0.0005 3 JT # 58 §) B% 19 /A
50,000 Jt #& 1 Z 500,000 T
EMBFTEEARABRERNE
ERS#ER -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(@

On 28 January 2014, the Company was successfully listed on
the SEHK by issuing 125,000,000 shares of US$0.0005 each at
HK$7.15 per share. As part of the Listing, 365,000,000 shares
were issued by way of capitalisation of share premium on the
proceeds from the issue of 125,000,000 shares as stated in
share capital as detailed in the Prospectus.

Following the issuance of 490,000,000 shares as described
above, the Company’s issued shares increased from 10,000,000
shares of US$0.0005 each to 500,000,000 shares of US$0.0005
each. On the date of the Listing, the Company had 500,000,000
issued shares of US$0.0005 each.

On 18 February 2014, the Company allotted and issued
18,750,000 additional shares of US$0.0005 each at HK$7.15
per share pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment options
by the international underwriter. On the date of approval of the
financial statements, the Company had 518,750,000 issued
shares of US$0.0005 each.
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27. B AR @)

©)]

R-ZE—NE—A-+)\BH AR
A% 5§ 7.157% 7T 8 17 125,000,000
A% £ A% ® f50.0005 3% 7T 2 B 15 -
BB ET e BRER
Fratil 2 iR APk - fEB LM —
o o i B ¥ # 17 125,000,000 B8 i%
M2 S RIEZ ARG G EE
TER{EH T = - 3 47365,000,000
B A% 15

R 24T+ 7t 490,000,000 % A% 17 1%
N2 A E 17 B% 9 B3 10,000,000 %
% {E0.0005% 7T 2 IR D 3g =
500,000,000 #% & A% M {E0.00053%
TZBm e R ETMBE  RARHE
500,000,000 % & A% ™ {&0.0005
ETLZEBITRG -

RZZE—WE_A+N\B: B
BlREEmiT BB RE &
NAERER7A5B TR % M 31T
18,750,000 % & fi% 1 {6.0.0005 3% 7T
ZEINR D RALET IR E A
By - KA B A 518,750,000 0% & f%
M {E0.0005%& T 2 B 1T 5 °
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 27. IR 2N ()

A summary of the transactions during the period with reference e Z2BERANABEBITRAZED
to the above movements in the Company’s issued share capital HEAR RS St an T -
is as follows:
Number of Share
shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
=5 &6)
ROEE EBERITRE ROBER ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2013 RZE—=
—H—H 10,000,000 31 — 31
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=%
1 January 2014 +-—A=+—H
M ZZF—gF
—HA—H 10,000,000 31 — 31
Capitalization issue (note (c)) &AL BEAT
(BT 3% (c)) 365,000,000 1,114 - 1,114
Issue of shares in connection with o EMETRND &
the Listing and exercise of 17 (L A RR BC MR 4
the over-allotment options (P4 7% (c) X (d))
(notes (c) and (d)) 143,750,000 439 806,694 807,133
Proposed final 2014 BE_T—MF
dividend (note 13) HIR IR B
(Mf3E13) — — (61,875) (61,875)
518,750,000 1,684 754,819 756,403
Share issue expenses R AD B 1TR S — — (37,2095) (37,209)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—NF
+=—HA=+—H 518,750,000 1,584 717,614 719,198
EENBEERLA —ZT—NFEFR
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continueq)

28

Warrants

On 2 September 2014, the Company successfully issued 100,000,000
warrants to an independent third party at a warrant subscription price
of HK$0.1 per warrant, the aggregate proceeds of which amounting to
HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,959,100).

The warrants entitle the subscriber to subscribe for a total of
100,000,000 warrant shares at the warrant exercise price of HK$8.0
per warrant share at any time during a period of 12 months
commencing from the completion date of the subscription of the
warrants. During the year, no warrants were exercised. The proceeds
from warrants placing of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB7,959,100), were recorded as a component of shareholders’
equity in warrant reserve. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, no warrants were exercised.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between the
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up capital of
the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s cost of acquisition
of the subsidiaries under the principles of the pooling-of-interests
method.

(b) Capital reserve
Capital reserve arose from the capital contribution by the
controlling shareholders of the Company.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve
Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus reserve
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC, and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

(d) Warrants reserve

Warrants reserve represents the proceeds received from the
placing of unlisted warrants of the Group.
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28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 ﬁ% '1% (&)
Company b/ NN
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements therein AATNBREHENEESELAEES
for the reporting period are presented as follows: 23
Share Exchange
premium Warrant  fluctuation = Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
B RREE EXRD
B IR #1E it RitEBE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2013 RZT—=F
—A—H — — — (1,750) (1,750)
Total comprehensive loss for the year & 2 H &£ % — — — (19,202) (19,202)
Proposed final 2013 dividend BE_T-=%F
HERREE — - - (43,056) (43,056)
At 31 December 2013 and RZT—=F
1 January 2014 +-A=+—H
R-_ZE—mFE
—HA—H — — - (64,008) (64,008)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ EE2E WA,
for the year (E18)ms — - 2,929 (9,713) (6,784)
Issue of shares in connection of HEmBEITZRG
the Listing 806,694 — — — 806,694
Share issue expenses BRinETHRE (37,205) - - - (37,2095)
Net proceeds from issue of warrants %47 2 B% # &5 fr 15
B FEHE - 7,959 - - 7,959
Proposed final 2014 dividend BE-T-E
HERRE (51,875) - - - (51,875)
At 31 December 2014 RN _T—F
+=A=+—-8 717614 7,959 2,929 (73721) 654,781
29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 2. E5EEH
Details of the Group’s bank loans which are secured by the assets of BRNAEEEEEEROLAEERT
the Group are included in note 24(b) to the financial statements. ERRFBEHA Y B IRENE240)
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. & fHEx

The Group leases certain of its properties and equipment under REBREEKEHETHRBEE TWE
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and equipment LERE - WELRRENHBERBENF—
are negotiated for terms ranging between one and ten years. EFF o

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease RZE—MNME+=-A=+—RHB ' &K&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: BEINHZATRHEgEREY N2k

R EREFRABAOT

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETTT

Within one year —F A 369
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRFRN(BREERRT) 1,104
After five years AF%E 336
1,809
31. COMMITMENTS 31. & B

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 30 Br b 3BT SES0FT 7F it 69 A8 & 1 & & I
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of G REBRBREHRHES THEAR

the reporting period: A
2014 2013

—E-mEF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBF T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRTHBRFHIREE

Plant and machinery Bl T 3,948
Advertising contracts EBEa R 10,258
14,206
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N.BBHIRS

(@) Outstanding balances with related parties () HEBEABAZAREELER
As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position, IR A ISR RFTIRE - PR
the Group had no outstanding balance due to its ultimate holding EHR AEEHERNERK
company (2013: RMB461,000) as at the end of the reporting ERAGBIZAREEZEHB(ZTE—=
period. F: AR 461,0007) °
(b) Compensation for key management personnel (including (b) x&EEFEEBAENHL (B
directors’ remuneration) of the Group: BEEMe) -
2014 2013
—E-mEF —EF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARMETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe FRULKEDIR 432
Performance related bonuses *E Bz EA —
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFHEIME K 29
Total compensation paid to key TNFEBEEASR
management personnel KB & B 58 461
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to EHEEamE —FTHBEHD
the financial statements. B RS RR MIE9 o
(c) On 1 January 2013, Chen Weizhong and Huzhou Laohenghe () W=—T—=%—A—R8 KEk=
Brewery Co., Limited entered into a licensing agreement, WM EEMEBESE AR A GG M —
whereby Chen Weizhong agreed to grant Huzhou Laohenghe BHAHE B MELRER
Brewery Co., Limited and its subsidiary and any future newly set FHMEBEMEBEAR AR - HH
up subsidiaries an exclusive right to use Chen Weizhong'’s trade- JB A R K AT A7) oK 2R F AR S /9 BT B
secret cooking wines recipes for no consideration. On 23 August NRIBERERN - A S ARG R
2013, Mr. Chen entered into a recipes transfer agreement with HMESENEEWMRRF R —
Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited to transfer the trade- =FNAZ+=H " BREEEBN
secret cooking wines recipes to Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery EZEMEEEAER AT Y — B
Co., Limited for a consideration of RMB1. FHEEDE NEHEAR®ITH

MM EENBERRAAGRE
LLES R R
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY WB.REFES>NEMIA

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments ZEEemMIENTEHRZ2EREN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ot
Group RE
Financial assets TRMEE
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=%F
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BERRK BER &
R E JE W R I8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Trade receivables U E 5 5kIA 187,900 88,939
Financial assets included in deposits and AR S R E M EWFRIE
other receivables WeREE 23,413 228
Time deposits EHFER 1,820 20
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY 218,466 44,011
431,599 133,198
Financial liabilities SRERE
2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=fF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
REBERAY B EKAT
RHNesmeE HKozpaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Trade payables EfTE 5 5K1AE 175,608 105,891
Financial liabilities included in other payables =t A CE b JE A~ F0E &
and accruals JEETEEMTRAE 42,027 22,133
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERRITREMER 417,760 233,000
Due to the ultimate holding company JES SR ARAE AR A B FRIE - 461
635,395 361,485
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY WB.REFEI>NEMIA

CATEGORY (Continued) (&)
Company PN
Financial assets cREE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=%F
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BEXRK B
FE W TR 1B JE U 3B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARBTF T
Financial assets included in deposits, AL S R E M EWFRTE
and other receivables MNEmEE 1,455 -
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — A BT BB & R FKIR 699,757 461
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBEEEY 7,076 30
708,288 491
Financial liabilities
2014 2013
—E-NF —_F—=
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
RBERAY R EBHEKAKT
RHLmEE HFHepaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAEMENKIEREFEE®
and accruals TERAE -
Amounts due to a subsidiary & — A Y /B & R ZR B 20,951
Amounts due to the ultimate holding company  J& 1o & 4% #2 i% A 7] ;I8 461
21,412
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NP ERBEEEEZER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BUR

140

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, an amount due from a director, and cash
and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit
risk and liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The major concentration of credit risk arises from the Group’s exposure
to a substantial number of trade receivables, other receivables, time
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and derived from revenue
earned from customers in the PRC, which are exposed to credit risk.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and has strict
control over credit limits of trade and other receivables. In addition, the
balance of trade receivables is monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 above.

Cash and time deposits are mainly deposited with registered banks in
Mainland China. The Group has policies to limit its credit exposure to
any financial institutions and management believes these financial
institutions are of high credit quality.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables, time
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group has
no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and have available funding through capital contribution and bank
borrowings.

The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

At 31 December 2014

A inued)
W 55 ¥R & B 51 (58)

\ —
31 December 2014 —F—F+—A=+—H
\\ ‘\\‘

34

%{fﬁ%lﬂl‘ﬁ“"éﬁ BERER

(%)

D B

AEENBRRARBABNRERE S
ZEVAZEBIERRITERNEE

R|ERR HETHWERBANRR
AERMeRaENIBBERET

R-ZE—WNFE+=-A=+—H

Less than 3to 12 1to
On demand 3 months months 5 years Total
=@EA —F

RERE =@A

A Et={EA ERF Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®TR AR®TR

Trade payables JE {2 5 78 102,149 175,608
Financial liabilities included St H i JE AT
in other payables and KRIB K ER
accruals HE M %@
afE 42,027 42,027

Interest-bearing bank and SFEESRITR

other borrowings H i &3 26,590 302,753 116,300 445,643

170,766 302,753 116,300 663,278

ZENBEARAR —ZFT-NFFR
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT N BEBREEEER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) BUSR )

B B )
R=F-—=F+=-A=+—H

Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2013

Less than 3to 12 1to
On demand 3 months months 5 years Total
={@A —%F
A E KK —@BAn Z=E+=EA ERF @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTRT AR®TEI ARBTT AR®TRT

Trade payables JERE 5 IR 37,801 68,090 - - 105,891
Financial liabilities included EAE AT

in other payables and RIB R FEETIR

accruals BMemasE - 11,133 11,000 - 22,133
Interest-bearing bank and SRR

other borrowings H b & 5% — 37,534 203,390 - 240,924
Due to the ultimate holding JES S ARHE R

company ARIFIA 461 — - - 461

38,262 116,757 214,390 — 369,409

EXERE

Capital management

142

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT MY ERREEREER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) BUER ()
Capital management (Continued) EREE @)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt AREBRAEABBL RELER &
divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes trade payables, b RIRSRE B RIABE ANB N EFEE
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other - ZEXKBEENESHRE  EfhfE
borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding company and other NRIEREEH st BT R EME
long term liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents T EAERERERAAZREAREME
total equity of the Company. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing HEERESRELSZEBY - EARER
ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the NAWEEZ AEENBRERBER
reporting periods are as follows: BELEHFNEGENKTE NREH
AOERBELERMAT
Group rE
2014 2013
—E-OF —ET—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Trade payables BT E 5 5KIA 175,608 105,891

Other payables and accruals Hiv e RIE R EFTEE 58,344 50,460
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITREMBER 417,760 233,000
Due to the ultimate holding company JEA SR AR AR A B FRIE - 461

Other long term liabilities HmREHAE 4,684 4,862
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BBRERREEEY (218,466) (44,0171)
Net debt FER 437,930 350,663
Total equity b 1,254,404 296,326
Capital and net debt ERRFER 1,692,234 646,989
Gearing ratio EARBEL X 26% 54%
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35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. it /& B % R 3k

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the FxeR _TE—HF=A_++tB#
board of directors on 27 March 2015. ENRET RIS ®RE -
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